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IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUDICATURE AT BOMBAY

IN ITS ORDINARY ORIGINAL CIVIL JURISDICTION

WRIT PETITION NO. 
         
OF 2010
In the matter of Article 226 of the Constitution of India

And
In the matter of Articles 12, 14 , 19(i)(c)  and 21 of the Constitution of India. 

And

In the matter of order of re-evaluation dated: September 21, 2009 of the Appellate Authority  partially modifying the punishment order of Dismissal to “Removal from Service which shall not be a disqualification for future employment”.





And
In the matter of order dated: July 15, 2009 passed by the Respondent No.4 the Appellate Authority inflicting a punishment of “Dismissal from service” on the Petitioner.

And

In the matter of order dated March 12th  2009 passed by the Respondent No.6, the Disciplinary Authority in the matter of report and finding of the Enquiry Officer the Respondent No.7:

And

In the matter of report and findings of the Enquiry Officer, the Respondent No.7 dated: February 17, 2009. 

And

In the matter of eviction order dated: 
 July 21st 2009  passed by the Respondent No. 5 directing forcible eviction of the Petitioner from the premises under his occupation.
1.
Shri. Ravi Prakash Srivastava


)


Resident of: 





)


Building No. A-7/3-5, 




)


Millennium Towers, Sector – 9,


)


Navi Mumbai – 400 705  



)

.. PETITIONER

VERSUS

1. UNION OF INDIA





)

2. The Secretary,





)

Petroleum & Natural Gas



)

Shastri Bhawan.





)


New Delhi. 





)

3. The Chairman and Managing Director

)


Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited
)



17, Jamshedjee Tata Road, 



)


Mumbai – 400 020




)

4. 
 All Functional Directors



)

APPELLATE AUTHORITY



)


Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited
)




17, Jamshedjee Tata Road, 



)


Mumbai – 400 020




)

5. The Director – HR




)

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited
)


17, Jamshedjee Tata Road, 



)


Mumbai – 400 020




)

6. The Director (Marketing)



)


The Disciplinary Authority  



)


17, Jamshedjee Tata Road, 



)


Mumbai – 400 020




)

7. THE ENQUIRY OFFICER
       



)
Shri. B. R. Puri





)

S-112, Panchshila  Park,



)

New Delhi – 110017.




)

8. The DGM- Administration



)


Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited
)


17, Jamshedjee Tata Road, 



)


Mumbai – 400 020




)

9. The Chief Vigilance Officer



)

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited
)




17, Jamshedjee Tata Road, 



)


Mumbai – 400 020




)

.. Respondent
TO

THE HON’ BLE THE CHIEF JUSTICE & OTHER HON’BLE JUDGES OF THE THIS HON’BLE HIGH COURT OF JUDICATURE AT BOMBAY.

HUMBLE PETITION OF

THE PETITIONER ABOVENAMED: 

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHEWETH:

1. The Petitioner challenges and impugns the order dated: 21st September, 2009 whereby the impugned order dated: 15.07.2009 has been partially modified by a reevaluation modifying the punishment of “Dismissal from Service” to “Removal from Service which shall not be a disqualification  for future employment”.    The Petitioner further challenges, impugns and assails order dated: 15.07.2009 as well as the Enquiry report and findings dated: 17.02.2009 on the basis of which the Respondent No. 4 had purportedly dismissed the Petitioner’s appeal dated: 27th March 2009 preferred by the Petitioner  inflicting a punishment of Dismissal from Service. The Petitoner is also aggrieved by the order of eviction dated: 21.07.2009 whereby the Respondent No.8 has forcibly evicted the petitioner from his company quarters without following the due process of law.  Copy of impugned orders dated: 21.09.2009 re-evaluating order of dismissal of appellate authority, order dated: 15.07.2009 of dismissal by appellate authority, order dated: 12.03.2009 of dismissal of disciplinary authority , Enquiry officer’s report and finding dated: 17.02.2009 and eviction order passed by Respondents N0.8, dated: 21.07.2009 are  hereto annexed and marked as ‘A’,  ‘B’, ‘C’, ‘D’ AND ‘E’, respectively.  



2. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.1 is the Union of India under whose control and supervision the Respondent’s No.2 to 8 perform and function. The Respondent No.2 is the  the Secretary  of the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas the Respondent No.3 is the Corporation and a state within the meaning of Article 12 of the Constitution of India and the employer of the Petitioner represented through the Chairman and Managing Director. The Respondent No.4 is the Appellate Authority as provided under the rules governing the Discipline and Appeal of the Management Staff of the corporation and the Respondent No.5 is the Director HR under the control and supervision of the Respondent No.3, the Respondent No. 6 is the Disciplinary Authority as provided under the rules governing the Discipline and Appeal of the Management Staff of the corporation, Respondent No. 7  is the Enquiry Officer Respondent No.8 & 9 , are the  officers of the Respondent No.3.. The Respondent No.7 has been arrayed in his personal capacity as the Petitioner is alleging malafides against the Respondent No.7.
3. The Petitioner states that the genesis of the impugned orders lie in the fact that the Petitioner had exhibited extreme valour by approaching the Central Bureau of Investigation and laying bare the large scale corruption prevailing by filing a Criminal Complaint which has now led to the  registration of an FIR against those who at the Helm of affairs. The Petitioner was even denied the protection of a Whistleblower as sought by him. The entire action launched against the Petitioner was with a view to obstruct and obviate the honest and genuine efforts of the Petitioner to bring to book the culprits who were responsible for a scam of Rs. 200 Crores. As the facts unfold it shall reveal that the Respondents actions reek of malafides and are in absolute colourable exercise of power.

4. The Petitioner challenges the impugned orders and assails the same on several facts and grounds but the basic injustice that has been inflicted is with a view to seek a personal vendetta against the Petitioner which is writ large on the face of the record as would be evident from the facts that would unfold but more particularly in view of the blatant and absolute violation of principles of natural justice as the Appellate Authority namely the Director HR the Respondent No. 5 who was a party and a participant in the whole series of incident which led to the framing of the charge against the Petitioner and upon whose testimony the  Petitioner had sought to heavily rely and had requested the Respondent No.5 to be produced as a witness. However this opportunity was denied to the Petitioner by the Enquiry officer and the Respondent No.5 has wilfully with knowledge and intention  and with design ensured to sit in the seat of judgment to decide the charge against the Petitioner in which the Respondent No.5 was himself personally involved and thus the Respondent No.5 has sought to victimise the Petitioner by being  a judge in his own cause. 

5. The Petitioner states that this is a classic example of utter violation of the 
axiom that a party should not be a judge in his own cause being demonstrated by those at the helm of the management of the Respondent No.3 and the rampant autocratic atmosphere prevailing therein. 

6. The Petitioner states that in view of the fact of the personal malafides and the bias with the Respondent has acted in violation and in total disregard of the principles of natural justice the Petitioner has impleaded the Respondent No.7 in his personal capacity  by name as Respondent No.7 and arrayed him as a party Respondent to this petition. 

7. The Petitioner states that this was infact a specific defence and a ground that was taken by the Petitioner in his appeal before the Respondent No. 4 and the Petitioners apprehension have being victimised at the hands of the Respondent and the Petitioner has been proved to be right. 

8. The Petitioner states that the charges that were levelled and as contained in the charge sheet dated 07.05.008 against the Petitioner in a nutshell  were : 

a) The Petitioner had sought to prompt officers to participate in a Flash Strike by sending emails and had exhorted the officers to be in a state of readiness and had made false allegations against the Corporation.

b) The Petitioner had damaged the image of the Corporation the Respondent No.3 by making derogatory reference in a Press Release, the press release was without the permission of the Chairman and the Managing Director and that the Petitioner had forwarded News Article through email containing false allegations against the Respondent No.3. 

c) Inspite of the General Manger –IR informing officers that proceeding on flash strike would amount to contempt of court the Petitioner sent email under the subject “FLASH STRIKE IS ON” and further that on receipt of notice of Flash Strike the Corporation had referred the matter to the Deputy Commissioner of Labour (Central) Mumbai yet despite receipt of the notice the Petitioner exhorted officers to proceed on an illegal strike.

9. The Petitioner states that he was in receipt of the initial order of dismissal passed by the Respondent No.6  the Disciplinary Authority dated: 12th March, 2009 and at the very outset wishes  to state and submit that apart from being absolutely shocked and surprised at the absolutely arbitrary, callous and predetermined action undertaken at the hands of the Respondent No.6 even before the completion of the mandatory period of 15 days provided under the rules to file reply to the Enquiry Report and in as much as in flagrant disregard and complete violation of principles of natural justice without according the Petitioner an opportunity to place his written submission to the Enquiry report submitted, turning down his written request for a further period of 7 (seven) days for genuine reasons to submit his written submission to the Enquiry report submitted and behind the Petitioner’s back without even affording him a proper opportunity the Respondent No. 6 has passed an order imposing a major penalty of Dismissal from Service. The entire action on the part of the Respondent No.6  demonstrates a  clear motive to victimise the Petitioner and the said action of the Respondent No.6  not only renders the order void and illegal, the said order is bad in law, void ab-initio  and under no circumstance can be upheld in the eyes of law. 
10. The Petitioner is at pains to point out that such undue haste was shown at the time of passing of the order of dismissal that the Respondent did not even give seven days to the Petitioner to tender his written submissions to the Enquiry report but after the dismissal order the Respondent No.4 the Apellate Authority took more than 7 (Seven) months to decide the Petitioners’ appeal.  

11. The entire action on the part of the Respondent No.6  demonstrates a clear motive to victimise the Petitioner and the said action of the Respondent No.6 not only renders the order void and illegal, the said order is bad in law, void ab-initio  and under no circumstance can be upheld in the eyes of law. This aspect has not been considered and taken into account at all by the Respondent No.4. 
12. The Petitioner therefore has to state that he is a victim of a sinister design as a well laid out well thought out and planned conspiracy was hatched at the hands of the management. As by those who were at the helm of affairs a conscious decision was taken to ensure that the Petitioner is somehow trapped and then under the garb of proceeding against him under the rules put him to harm and oust him. Unfortunately the Respondent No.7 and the Respondent No.6 too are part of this well laid out plan, and thus the Petitioner had serious apprehension as was raised vide his objection by letter dated: 23.06.2008 of not being meted out with justice and with adherence to the procedure and the law by the Respondent No.7 and the Respondent No.6  has made it come true. This aspect of the matter also could not have been ignored by the Respondent No.4 yet the Respondent have departed from the impartial and juristic function allotted to them and on this count alone the impugned order deserves to be quashed and set aside.

13. The Petitioner states that this is a classic example of utter violation of the axiom that a party cannot be a judge in his own cause being demonstrated by those at the helm of the Respondent No.3 and the rampant autocratic atmosphere prevailing therein. 
PETITIONER’S BIO-DATE

14. Before dealing with the Impugned order passed by the Respondent No.6 , the Petitioner would like to briefly state as regards the Petitioner’s background which is as under 

15. The Petitioner states that he was initially appointed as an Operation officer in the year 1982. Considering his excellent performance and service record he was promoted as Senior Operation Officer in the year 1987. He was further granted 3 more promotions as Dy. Manager Operation,
Manager and Senior Manager Operation. Prior to the filing of this Petitioner the Petitioner was working as Senior Manager Operation and posted at the head office at Mumbai. Efforts made by Petitioner have benefited Hindustan Petroleum corporation, and he has been well appreciated for the various assignments handled by him, viz:
1. The petitioner’s efforts saved embarrassment and a monetary saving of 147, crores by  swiftly collecting excise documents, from HPCL locations in a span of 3 months, His endeavour was well appreciated by then Dir(M)

2. The Petitioner facilitated sale of scrap worth Rs. 60 cr, lying across the HPCL locations during the month of January to March 2008.

16. Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) is an association registered under the Trade Unions Act, 1926 apart from the main objective to continue to render loyal and efficient service to the company and to the nation and various other objectives of the association the primary objective of the association is to promote, safeguard and advance the common interests of members, including their rights, privileges and the terms and conditions of service of the members of the association. The said association has been playing a very important role in maintaining cordial and harmonious relationship between its members and the top management and the same has been acknowledged by the management from time to time. The Petitioner has been an active member of the association since 1982 and thereafter he was elected as the Treasurer in 1995. Since 1995 the Petitioner was working as Treasurer of the Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) and has been taking active part in the functioning / administration of the said association.

17. Besides being the office bearer of Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) the said association the Petitioner was also a coordinator and active member of an Apex Body known as Oil Sector Officers Association (OSOA) which represents over 45,000 officers working in the Oil PSU viz ONGC, OIL, IOCL, HPCL, BPCL, CPCL, BL, GAIL, KRL, BRPL, NRL etc.

18. The Petitioner states that for the last 30 years Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) has been representing officers of the corporation very effectively. During the said period Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) have represented number of major issues such as modification of promotion and transfer policy, pay fixation and salary revisions, compensational benefits etc. the Petitioner further states that the Respondent No. 5 is the immediate authority who attends to the issues represented by Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA).

19. The Petitioner state that Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA)’s objective is to ensure that Management of Hindustan Petroleum  functions and acts in a very fair manner and further to continue with the HR practice and traditions of the corporation i.e. to consider internal candidates for promotions and also fill up vacancies in the Joint Venture from internal eligible candidates only and ensure better career progression for the internal eligible candidates and ensure that equitably fair opportunity be given to the officers etc. Such was the feeling espoused by every member of the said association.
20. The Petitioner states that he was made a victim of a sinister design as a well laid out well throughout and planned conspiracy was hatched against the Petitioner at the hands of the management. Those who were at the helm of affairs a conscious decision was taken to ensure that the Petitioner was trapped and then under the garb of proceeding against him  under the rules he has been put to harm. Unfortunately the Enquiry officer and the Respondent No.6  too are part of this well laid out plan and thus The Petitioner’s serious apprehension as was raised vide The Petitioner’s objection by letter dated: 23.06.2008 of not being meted out with justice and with adherence to the procedure and the law by the Enquiry officer and the Respondent No.6  has come true. This aspect of the matter also cannot be ignored by this Hon’ble court  and on this count alone the impugned order has to be quashed and set aside as the Respondent No.4, has not considered this aspect al all.
21. Thus by appointing Shri. Sanjay Grover to the said post the corporation deprived more than 150 competent officers who were struggling for higher promotion for number of years for want of suitable vacancies for no fault of theirs. 
22. The Petitioner states that the aforesaid issue being a very serious issue as regards the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover to the post of CEO of Hindustan Colas Limited (HINCOL), The Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) convened a meeting of Central Executive Committee Members at Vizag on 28.04.2008 which was presided over by the Director HR the Respondent No.5 herein,  of the Corporation, each and every members of the committee expressed concern about the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover, it being against the well established practice of the corporation and also against the public interest. After due deliberations it was unanimously resolved that the corporation should immediately cancel or withdraw the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover and in his place some internal, suitable and competent person should be appointed by giving sufficient opportunity to in service candidates who are waiting for promotion for long time and accordingly following resolution to that effect came to be passed unanimously as under : 
“All India CEC met at Vizag on 28.04.2008 and deliberated at length the issue of appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover as CEO HINCOL. The association expressed concern on the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover an officer who has resigned from the corporation in the salary grade E and is being appointed in scale of salary of grade G / H. There are more than 150 officers eligible for the said post and as per the practice since inception of HINCOL the post was to be filled in either from DGM or GM officers from the organization. Hence the association appeals to the management to cancel the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover and offer an opportunity to all eligible officers and appointment be made in transparent and objective manner on merits of the candidates. In case the management does not consider the request of the association, the association shall be constrained to resort to agitational path in the interest of its members and the organization at large”. Copy of the resolution dated:…….is hereto annexed and marked as Exhibit “”
The aforesaid resolution was conveyed to the Respondent No.5 who in turn promised the association that their request shall be considered and shall be appropriately taken up at the Management level. 

23. However the Petitioner states that inspite of the protest Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) and assurance given by the Respondent No.5, as mentioned above, Shri. Sanjay Grover was allowed to take charge as CEO of HINCOL with effect from 02.05.2008. Being aggrieved by the said action on the part of the management, the association once again appealed to the Management in a democratic manner to reconsider and review its decision. 

24. The Petitioner states that taking cognizance of the appeal made by Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA), the Respondent No.5 called the office bearers of the association and conveyed that the Respondent No.3 the Chairman and Managing Director of the corporation was not in town and therefore no decision could be taken immediately. However, Respondent No.5  assured that the issues raised by the association would be placed before Respondent No.3  the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Corporation on 05.05.2008 when he will be available in Mumbai for discussion. Accordingly a meeting was convened on 05.05.2008 and in the said meeting the association with one voice once again appealed to Respondent No.5 to cancel the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover and give opportunity to all eligible candidates inside the corporation and on the basis of merits of the case an eligible officer be appointed to the said post. After hearing the office bearers of the association the Respondent No.5 opined that the views expressed by the association is fair one. However, he expressed his inability to review the decision of appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover as CEO. 

25. The Petitioner states that considering the seriousness of the issue and sentiments expressed by the officers in the said meeting, the Respondent No.5 came forward and had personally tried to contact each and every officer and through communication made an appeal and requested all the officers not to go on strike. The Petitioner state that the word Strike as is being used by the Management cannot be attributed the meaning as assigned to it under the Industrial Disputes Act as the said Industrial Disputes Act is not applicable to the Petitioner or to any of the members of the Association. However, being aggravated by such communication and attitude shown by Respondent No.3 about the issue of appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover as CEO, majority officers spontaneously of their own volition and without waiting for call from the association decided to go on strike with effect from 06.05.2008. The Petitioner along with the President of Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA),  Ashok Singh in view of the assurance given by the GM (Marketing HR) at 11.30 P.M. on 05.05.2008, sincerely tried their level best to pacify the agitating officers from going on strike. The Petitioner states that on the next day i.e. 06.05.2008 the Petitioner and the President of Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) when they were about to leave for office at Hindustan Bhavan, Ballard Estate, they were stopped by the gathering of about 150 officers to know the development. The Petitioner shared with the officers that the management has given assurance and so no officer should adopt the extreme agitational path of strike, to which all the officers responded negatively and stated that the Petitioner as the office bearer of the association, was conveying false assurance given by the management but in fact it has not given any results and as such, such assurance given by the management has no meaning, to which the Petitioner requested the officers agitating and to pacify all the officers that the Petitioner and the President of HPMSA be given a chance to request the Respondent No.5 for having a direct person to person dialogue along with all the officers. The officers present willingly accepted the proposal of having person to person dialogue with Respondent No.5. In view thereof the Petitioner along with the President contacted Respondent No.5 on phone at 8.20 A.M. and requested him to kindly come for a person to person dialogue with the agitating officers and reach an amicable and acceptable solution to the issue in question as the situation was not manageable by the Petitioner and the President of the association Ashok Singh as the officers/members were in an agitational mood,  to which the Respondent No.5  readily agreed and advised the Petitioner to make the officers wait in the auditorium. Accordingly the Respondent No.5  accompanied by GM HR (Marketing) and DGM (HR) Mumbai Refinery reached the venue (the auditorium)  at 11.00 A.M. and thereafter Respondent No.5 and his team had a direct person to person dialogue with the agitating officers. The officers were so agitated on the illegal and arbitrary appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover that even core management group such as DGM (Legal), DGM (Admn.) most of the department Heads also forced “Flash Strike”. None of the above officers were prepared to listen to the assurance coming forth from Respondent No.5. In                                                                                                                                                                                          fact it was only on the repeated requests from the Petitioner’s and the president of Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) Ashok Singh that officers resumed their duties in the afternoon. 
 There was no strike but the officers were delayed to reach office for work. 
26. The Petitioner states that on the basis of the aforesaid assurance, though the officers were not satisfied and confident the Petitioner once again requested all the agitating officers  not to adopt the agitational path including going on strike at that stage.

27. The Petitioner states that thereafter as directed by Respondent No.5, President HPMSA Ashok Singh and the Petitioner along with  other officers went to GM (HR) Marketing and held discussions with them and finally arrived at a solution, which was minuted as under :

“Minutes of the discussions held between management and representatives of HP MSA on 06.05.2008 in office of GM – HR (Marketing) :

a) On the issue of appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover as CEO of HINCOL, HP MSA and entire office community has expressed their strong sentiment and demanded the removal of Shri. Sanjay Grover as CEO of HINCOL. Taking cognizance of HP MSA’s demand, the Board meeting of HINCOL would be called as early as possible and matter will be placed before the Board of HINCOL for review of their decision. Thereafter, further course of action would be discussed with HP – MSA.

b) It is also agreed that a comprehensive policy for ensuring the interest of officers shall be drawn up by the Corporation for deputation / appointment of HPCL officers in the other JVs / Subsidiary Companies (Existing / Proposed) of HPCL within 3 months.

c) It is agreed that a meeting of HP – MSA would be convened with Functional Directors on the issue of out sourcing of Company Operations / appointment of consultants.

d) In view of the above resolutions, there will be no Disciplinary Action / Wage deduction initiated against the officers”.

Hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT “” is a copy of the said minutes dated 06.05.2008.

28. The Petitioner states that the said minutes were forwarded to the Respondent No.5 for his approval and ratification and then to GM  (Marketing-HR) to make corrections which was done in the handwriting of GM HR (Marketing) and the same was forwarded to the Respondent No.5 at Delhi.  GM HR Marketing conveyed to the Petitioner and the other officers during the meeting that these minutes will be signed by Respondent No.5 and will be handed over on the next day.
29. The Petitioner to his utter shock and surprise while he was expecting the signing of the minutes, he   alongwith the President of association Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) were issued a charge sheet. wherein Wild, baseless, false, unfounded, concocted and reckless allegations were made in the said  charge sheet which was issued in  colourable exercise of the power vested in the Respondent No.6 dated 07.05.2008. The Petitioner submitted his reply to the said Charge sheet on 16th July, 2008 and denied the charges as the same were baseless and untenable and made with malicious intentions. Copy of reply to the said Charge Sheet is hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT “” and the Petitioner’s reply to the said charge sheet dated: 16th July, 2008 is annexed as EXHIBIT “F”. 
30. The Petitioner states that instead of appreciation of his strenuous efforts in successfully pacifying the officers and averting an untoward incident the Respondent No.6  instead immediately within a period of less than 24 hours issued a charge sheet dated 07.05.2008 framing charges against the Petitioner.
31. The Petitioner at the cost of repetition would like to state that the charges that were levelled and as contained in the charge sheet dated 07.05.008 against the Petitioner in a nutshell  were : 

a) The Petitioner had sought to prompt officers to participate in a Flash Strike by sending emails and had exhorted the officers to be in a state of readiness and had made false allegations against the Corporation.

b) The Petitioner had damaged the image of the Corporation the Respondent No.3 by making derogatory reference in a Press Release, the press release was without the permission of the Chairman and the Managing Director and that the Petitioner had forwarded New Article through email containing false allegations against the Respondent No.3. 

c) Inspite of the General Manger –IR informing officers that proceeding on flash strike would amount to contempt of court the Petitioner sent email under the subject “FLASH STRIKE IS ON” and further that on receipt of notice of Flash Strike the Corporation had referred the matter to the Deputy Commissioner of Labour (Central) Mumbai yet despite receipt of the notice the Petitioner exhorted officers to proceed on an illegal strike.

32. At the very outset the Petitioner  would like to respectfully point out that the Respondent have failed to realise that all actions of the Petitioner were actions taken in good faith and the Respondent No.4, 6 and 7 have lost sight of this fact and proceeded having miserably failed to draw the strict line of distinction as the inquiry could not be initiated against the Petitioner as : 

a) All actions under consideration have been undertaken in the Petitioner’s capacity as the Treasurer of HP-MSA and not as an employee of the company alone. Thus the Petitioner’s actions cannot be viewed in isolation. The actions undertaken as Treasurer of HPMSA cannot be equated on the same footing as actions undertaken as an ordinary employee of the company. 

b) The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4 has completely given a go by to the challenge of discrimination raised by the Petitioner in as much as the Petitioner had in categorical terms raised a point that since the action of the Petitioner was based on a collective decision of the CEC he cannot be singled out.  This challenge of the Petitioner has been totally ignored and Respondent No.4 has not dealt with the said issue at all. 

c) The affairs of the Association, financial and otherwise are mandatorily to be conducted by Central Executive Committee (CEC) which consists of the following - A President, One Working President & one Vice-Presidents, a General Secretary, 4(Four) Secretaries, 4 (Four) Jt. Secretaries, a Treasures and 28 Committee members including the office bearers.
d) Thus actions undertaken are in consequence of the decision taken by the CEC and in pursuance of the implementation of the decision of the CEC the Petitioner cannot be charged under the conduct rules as he was assigned a particular role as an office bearer of the Association and which role is duly recognised by the management of the corporation.

33. The Petitioner therefore state that in view of what is stated above the entire Enquiry stands vitiated as he could not be charged for acts undertaken and based upon the decision of the CEC and more particularly because he was performing functions as the Office bearer of the Association and not as an officer of the corporation.

34. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4’s reference to the Trade Union Act in the order passed by the Respondent No.6 is misplaced in as much as the Petitioner states that it has never been the charge of the Respondent that the Petitioner’s actions were not taken in good faith and it is for the first time that the Respondent No.4 is raising the issue of the provision as enshrined in the Trade Union Act. 

35. The Petitioner submits that the Respondent No.7 the Enquiry Officer  as well as the Respondent No.6 and the Respondent No.4 have all failed to take cognizance of the fact that as an Office bearer of the Association the Petitioner enjoys protection as the association is registered under the Indian Trade Unions Act 1926 which accords him immunity for all actions undertaken in his capacity of an office bearer of the Association particularly as all acts performed by the Petitioner were acts done in good faith.

36. The Respondent NO.4 were desperate in fixing The Petitioner in any manner at any cost and therefore on 11.06.2008 again  the Petitioner was given a show cause notice for displaying a report of Technical Committee on the association notice board though the said report is a public document which was circulated for public on the website namely www.indianpetro.com on 21.05.2008 itself and thus there was no secrecy as regards the contents of the said report. The Petitioner states that he enjoys an absolutely unblemished service record and there was nothing against him which the management could have dragged against him and as a matter of fact the  Respondent No.5 was finding fault for which the Management could be have been made liable. However, the Respondent could not succeed in finding fault against the Petitioner’s working and the Petitioner’s boldness and honesty in his association activities. However, the Petitioner  states that the same is done with a view to give signal to other office bearers that if they do not adopt and obey the instructions of Respondent, the Respondent No.3, 5 & 6  in particular, same and similar treatment will be meted out to them in future. 
37. 
 The Petitioner  states that there is also reason to believe that Respondent No.3 of the Hindustan Petroleum Corporation instructed higher officers to personally contact the members HP-MSA association and persuade them not to support the office bearers of the particular association in any manner and to resign from membership of the said association and was successful in pressurizing approximately 1600 officers from resigning from their membership of the association in a span of about a month’s time. All the resignation letters were stereotype without disclosing any reason as to why they have chosen to resign from the membership of the association.

38. The Petitioner states that on 12.05.2008 the Petitioner as a co – complainant with the President of Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) association made a complaint to the CBI against then Respondent No.2 for irregularities amounting to Rs. 200 Crores in the purchase of Marker System from M/s. Authentix and their Indian agent M/s. SGS Ltd. This Marker was launched by Hon’ble Minister of Petroleum &Nat. Gas on 4.10.06 at Indian Oil’s Bijwasan Terminal .
39. The Petitioner states that the CBI has registered an FIR against the Respondent No.2. wherein the Petitioner is the complainant.  This establishes the fact that the Respondent in order to scuttle the efforts of the Petitioner to bring to light the truth and expose the Respondent of the large scale scandal of marker issue involving Rs. 200 crores was the reason that the Petitioner has been victimised and the manner and the turn of events confirm that the Petitioner has been a victim at the hands of the Respondent for exposing the Respondent.  

40. The Petitioner states that he was in receipt of the initial order of dismissal passed by the Respondent No.6  the Disciplinary Authority dated: 12th March, 2009 and at the very outset wishes  to state and submit that even before the completion of the mandatory period of 15 days provided under the rules as enumerated under rule F - 20 (iii) Part II Discipline and Appeal Rules for Management Employees  to file reply to the Enquiry Report and in as much as in flagrant disregard and complete violation of principles of natural justice without according the Petitioner an opportunity to place his written submission before the Respondent No.6 the Disciplinary Authority turned down his written request for a further period of 7 (seven) days for genuine reasons to submit his written submission to the Enquiry report and behind the Petitioner’s back without even according him a proper opportunity the Respondent No. 6 has passed an order imposing a major penalty of Dismissal from Service. The entire action on the part of the Respondent No.6  demonstrates a  clear motive to victimise the Petitioner and the said action of the Respondent No.6  not only renders the order void and illegal, the said order is bad in law, void ab-initio  and under no circumstance can be upheld in the eyes of law. This aspect has not been considered and taken into account at all by the Respondent No.4.  
41. The petitioner states that he has been inflicted with a series of attacks purely as a consequence of his being a conscious and law abiding and vigilant officer and citizen of our Nation, making sincere efforts to instil, inculcate and  foster qualities of uprightness, honesty and integrity to be held aloft, yet as narrated above it would be obvious that at every step of the way he has been victimised at the slightest incident with a predetermined design at the hands of the respondents No. 5 to 8 only to ensure that the petitioner is frustrated and is thrown out for the predators to have the field for themselves. A very brief chronology would demonstrate this fact as under : 
	Date
	EVENT/ACTION

	07.05.2008
	Charge Sheet issued to the petitioner for alleged prompting of officers for flash strike.

	30.07.2008 
	Respondent No.6 Issued chargesheet in the marker case alleging display of technical committee report on association notice board. Enquiry commenced on 21.11.2008.

	09.01.2009
	Suspended without any show cause notice nor even a contemplated enquiry  by Respondent No.6 

	17.02.2009 
	Enquiry officer appointed in charge Sheet dated: 30.07.2008 abrubtly truncated the enquiry proceedings on 18.02.09 while petitioner demanded Committee of Functional Director’s approval   note for purchase of Marker. 

	01.03.2009
	Respondent No.6 issued charge sheet  against suspension order dated: 09.01.2009 for allegedly prompting the officers to join All India Oil Sector Officer’s Association Strike from 07.01.2009 till 09.01.2009.

	12.03.2009
	Order of Dismissal passed by the Disciplinary Authority 

	27.03.2009
	Appeal filed by the Petitioner before the Respondent No.4

	15.07.2009
	Respondent No.4, passed order in Appeal dated: 27.03.2009 filed by the petitioner dismissing the petitioner from service. 

	21.07.2009
	Respondent No.8 issued eviction orders evicting the petitioner from company quarters. 

	21.09.2009
	Order of Appellate Authority passed reducing punishment of dismissal to Removal from Service.


42. The Petitioner state that considering the seriousness of the complaint and the quantum of money involved therein, Union of India and Respondent No.3 of the Hindustan Petroleum Corporation ought to have taken a serious note of the same and appropriate action should have been taken accordingly. However, at the instance of The Respondent No.5 of the Hindustan Petroleum Corporation, instead of finding out the truth in the complaint made by the Petitioner, the Respondent No.3 decided to punish the Petitioner and the President of the association by exercising managerial powers to victimize the Petitioner and the President of the association for their Association activities and uprightness. 
43. The Petitioner states that in view of having lodged a complaint to the CBI against the Secretary-Petroleum and  MG. Authentix Limited. UK & SGS India Ltd., on illegalities and irregularities and corruption in award of Contract worth Rs. 200 crores the Petitioner had made an application under para 6 of the Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances and Pension, Government of India No. 371/12/2002-AVT-III dated: 21st April, 2004 Resolution VICTIMISATION OF WHISTLEBLOWER TO THE Hon’ble Central Vigilance Commissioner vide The Petitioner’s application dated: 22nd July, 2008 clearly stating and submitting that in order to completely humiliate the Petitioner and break the Petitioner’s neck large scale intimidating tactics were being used by the management.  Thus the Petitioner had sought protection as a whistleblower. The said request however had not been considered and the request for protection of whistle-blowers has been turned down. The Petitioner had challenged the said rejection of being accorded the protection of Whistleblower by filing a writ petition before this Hon’ble Court which was later withdrawn by the Petitioner.
44. The Petitioner states and submit that he had reliably learnt that instructions were issued to initiate disciplinary action against him to seek vengeance and settle personal scores and thus the entire action has been launched in utter disregard of the settled procedure thereof, the settled prevailing legal position and in utter violation of principles of natural justice.
45. VAGUENESS OF CHARGE EXPLAINED

46. The Petitioner states that a sweeping statement made by the Appellate authority without any justification and application mind cannot be held to be true much less the charge as is being justified to be specific and based on documentary evidence. The Respondent No.4 in the impugned order has admitted that the Presenting officer has proceeded on the basis of circumstantial evidence and has held that the Respondent No.6 and the Respondent No.7  have arrived at his findings by the prosecution and defence circumstantial and corroborated and documentary evidence. But at the same time has filed to demonstrate how the Respondent No. 4 finds that the Respondent No. 6 and 7 have corroborative evidence and what corroborative material was on record .First of all the Petitioner states that none of the documents relied upon on this issues stand proved at all. The Petitioner further states and submits that the charges framed and as incorporated in the Memorandum dated: 07.05.2008 are absolutely vague, erroneous and misleading and do not constitute a basis to proceed against the Petitioner   and the reasons are :

a) A bare reading of the Article of Charge – I itself would reveal at the outset the Petitioner say that he denies and  repeats and reiterates that The Petitioner has not sent any emails at all much less mails as alleged to have been sent by him in the Charge Sheet.  The entire allegation is of the Petitioner having incited officers to proceed on a flash strike which is apart from being impossible it is absolutely untenable as the charge itself reads that the Petitioner is a mere “conveyer” of the decision of the HPMSA. First of all it is vehemently denied that the Petitioner is the conveyer of the said decision as alleged. Yet assuming though not admitting that the Petitioner conveyed the decision of HPMSA it is pertinent to note that the charge itself clarifies that he merely conveyed a decision that too in the Petitioner’s capacity as an office bearer of the association. In the same flow of the same charge it is recorded “Wherein He communicated the deferring of the flash strike on 05.05.2008.....”. Again assuming though not admitting if the allegation that the Petitioner was trying to incite officers to proceed on flash strike then logic would dictate that the Petitioner would suppress any such communication that would defer the strike. Thus the Petitioner has to state that the Charge itself is bereft of drawing any meaning much less any meaning to be able to comprehend and then prove it. The Respondent No.4,5 & 6 has not applied his mind at all to this aspect and has mechanically proceeded in utter disregard of the rules, procedures and the law.  Hence this imputation itself has to be struck down being vague and misleading and untenable in the eyes of law and the rules framed.
b) The Petitioner states and submits that as regards the second Article of Charge it is again a misnomer as the Respondent No.5 imputes that “In the said communication he (that is the Petitioner) had enclosed the text of the press release forwarded by HPMSA to various Press agencies....” The Petitioner denies vehemently having sent any such communication,  yet even on an assumption the allegation does not spell out anything specific further the imputation is presumptuous as the communication in question is sent via electronic media being an email. Thus in the imputation it has been presumed that the communication has been sent by the Petitioner, such presumption even to allege is not available unless the person alleging is in a position to have knowledge as to from where the email has originated and is able to identify the point of origin and then confront  with such information or allegation for the Petitioner to be able to rebut, this is absent and absolutely missing in the imputation.  Secondly the actual press article and the content of the email, the alleged press release were totally different thus on the face of it the content of the email who ever sent it was never published hence it was not a press release at all but an independent article as a result of the efforts of and independently reported in this case by one Mr. Piyush Pandey. Thirdly the imputation did not specify which press agency to corroborate the press release with the press article. The imputation is so lengthy that it traverses too many angles and the content and scope of the imputation itself gets lost into a quagmire of probables. The imputation alleges “enclosing”, “forwarding” but does not allege “creating”.  Further the imputation is addressed to the Petitioner as an employee whereas actions alleged to be undertaken were of the Petitioner as an office bearer of the association, this distinction has also been lost and thus the allegation of the Petitioner making false allegations much less other false allegations not specified have put the Petitioner to a great loss as such an allegation is impossible to rebut much less comprehend.

c) The Petitioner states and submits  that in so far as the Article of Charge – III is concerned the Respondent No.5 is not posted with the correct facts of the matter. Contempt is between the parties to the suit and the court and the judgment in question was a judgment in persona and not a judgment in rem thus this imputation on the face of it is untenable and cannot be alleged against the Petitioner. Further the Petitioner states that no specific allegation as regards The Petitioner’s participation, contribution or writing in the Petitioner’s capacity as an officer of the company or otherwise has been brought out in connection with the press article. Further in so far as the Notice issued to HPMSA by the Deputy Commissioner of Labour (Central), Mumbai is concerned the Petitioner states the Management is totally misguided in as much as in the first instance Industrial Disputes Act is not applicable to the Petitioner and cannot be applied to the Association of Management Staff Association as the entire members of the Association are officers and by no stretch of imagination can officers / Management Staff fall with the purview and meaning of “Workman” as defined under the Industrial Disputes Act. Secondly It has to be thus stated that the entire action of launching and initiating the Enquiry was to harass, humiliate and put the Petitioner to harm with a predetermined motive.  Be that as it may the said notice was addressed to the President of the association and the management committed a serious lapse in addressing the same to the Petitioner, that too as a scanned attachment through an email when the President of the Association was available in person.

CHALLENGE TO ENQUIRY /IMPUGNED ORDER BEGINS
47. The Petitioner states that after the inquiry commenced and in the proceedings held on 16.07.2008 when the Petitioner appeared and pointed out that vide The Petitioner’s letter dated 23.06.2008 he has  raised objection to the appointment of Shri. B. R. Puri as Enquiry Officer (EO) on the ground of bias and strong apprehension and that justice will not be done to the Petitioner. Hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT “G” is a copy of the said letter dated 23.06.2008.

48. The Petitioner states that the inquiry commenced on 16.07.2008 and the Petitioner pointed out the objection raised by him on the grounds of bias to the appointment of the Enquiry Officer vide the Petitioner’s letter dated: 23.06.2008 and requested that the said letter be taken on record. The Enquiry officer without giving any thought and applying mind or responding to the said letter merely brushed aside and stated that the same letter shall be dealt with by the Respondent No.5. Subsequently the Petitioner’s objection was not considered. The Petitioner would like to add and record here that the apart from the bias that he anticipated at the hands of the Enquiry Officer the Petitioner also did not enjoy any confidence in the ability and the competence of the Enquiry officer particularly in respect of computer literacy.

49. The Petitioner’s lack of confidence in the ability and the competence of the Enquiry Officer was substantiated and established by none other than the Enquiry Officer himself as would be self evident from the contents of one of the email which ought to have been addressed to the Presenting officer however came to be found in the Petitioner’s mail box where the Enquiry Officer blatantly admitted of his ignorance, lack of knowledge and of the absolutely low level of computer literacy he enjoyed and the Petitioner quotes what the Enquiry officer wrote “.....Somehow it got addressed to RPS and as you are aware that I am very poor in computer application ..........” . Thus here is a case where the Enquiry officer is not even aware of properly addressing email and is sitting in judgment to decide a matter involving origination of email, web site addresses, Internet Protocol, TCP/IP, digital signatures, encryptions, common access by several members to a web site through passwords, domain, public domain etc. In the events that have followed and would unfold the Petitioner shall point out and it would reveal that the Enquiry officer did not even have knowledge of the basic procedures to be followed during a domestic departmental Enquiry. Thus a clear cut design had been set in motion to deprive the Petitioner of the Petitioner’s legitimate rights and spoil the Petitioner’s career and nail him. Copy of email dated: 17.10.2008 7.39PM from Mr. Brij Raj Puri to K. Nagesh CC: R. P. Srivastava bearing subject: Re: Enquiry against Sh R. P. Shrivastava is hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT”H”.

50. The Petitioner states that on 11.08.2008, he appeared before the EO and the charges were read out to him and the Petitioner emphatically denied and did not admit a single charge denying each charge specifically. 

51. The Enquiry officer has erroneously led himself to believe that the email id was personal to the Petitioner which is by no stretch of imagination possible as the email id in question from where it is alleged to have been sent is a common email id set in public domain wherein 28 officers have access and wherein 28 different officers can send any mail writing anybody’s name at the end of the text as all 28 officers email id is identical. Thus the only way to identify the origin of the email could have been to fix the officer’s presence at the terminal (The Computer system) the Internet Protocol Address (IP Address) from where the email originated and the time of the email to match the time of the presence of the officer at that terminal. Even this cannot conclusively identify the sender of the mail as there is always the possibility of computer hacking or misuse of password. In the present case the Enquiry Officer has never bothered to look into these aspects much less when the Petitioner pointed out to the Enquiry officer to provide these details the same request was blatantly turned down in flagrant violation of principles of natural justice, thus making it impossible to establish the identity of the probability of who could be the sender of the emails, if at all they were sent from the web site as contained in the allegations. In the Enquiry proceedings dated: 11.08.2008 the Presenting Officer states : “While presenting the case, requested that Email dated 2.5.2008 (6.39pm) may be taken on record on the subject agitation against appointment of Mr. Sanjay Grover in Hindustan Colas – letter to Director- Hr from the mail ID: HPMSA mail@hpmsa.org  It is further stated : “Further Mr. R. P. Shrivastava, has sent one more email dated: 3.5.2008 (3.42pm) against the same email ID on the subject...........” Thus it is crystal clear that mails being considered are all mails sent from the ID mail@hpmsa.org which is certainly not the Petitioner’s personal email id in fact 28 other officers of hpmsa have the same email id and a password to access to send email through this email id. Thus it is totally erroneous to even imagine much less contemplate that emails sent from this email id can ever be said to be emails sent by the Petitioner. Neither has this been proved in the Enquiry.The Petitioner states that the Presenting Officer   has not made any concrete efforts nor the Enquiry officer has bothered to even examine a single witness on this issue or of the issue of whether the mails produced are sent mail or copies of mails procured from some recipients. A bare perusal of the copy of the email would reveal that in the email the recipient’s name is missing and mails have different time and different time/date/year format which establishes the fact that all these mails procured are mails retrieved from the recipients unknown and undisclosed  to the Petitioner and not a single copy of the mail is retrieved from the mail box from which these mails have originated or retrieved from the sent mail of the mail box of the respective computer from where these mails have originated thus these mails produced lack any evidentiary value and cannot be relied upon at all. In the absence of this basic document of the allegation of charge being proved upon which the entire case is built the Petitioner states that the Enquiry stands vitiated.

52. In order to bring forth the actual facts as regards these issues of the IP Address and web site etc., in the Enquiry Proceedings dated: 8.9.2008 the Petitioner had apart for other things made a specific request to inspect the Official Website of HPMSA. The Enquiry officer to the Petitioner’s utter dismay rejected the Petitioner’s request by stating : “I do not find any reason for  the request made to inspect HPMSA website, because the emails sent from that website and taken on record.....establish the existence of the website”. First of all it was never the Petitioner’s case nor the Petitioner ever stated that the Website did not exist, in fact because it existed the Petitioner made a request to inspect the same to get to the truth of the matter. This clearly disclosed the lack of specific knowledge of internet domain etc. of the Enquiry officer as It was perhaps beyond the comprehension of the Enquiry Officer as to how to procure information from accessing the website. Thus serious prejudice has been caused to the Petitioner whereby on such refusal the Petitioner has been denied even the most basic and reasonable opportunity to defend the Petitioner’s case and prove the Petitioner’s innocence.
53. The  Petitioner states that the Respondent No.5 has never presented any analysis nor has he dealt with the proceedings in a fair and a proper manner so as to accord the Petitioner natural justice and the Respondent No. 4 cannot be justified only to state without application of mind or for that matter just record that circumstantial evidence is sufficient to establish the charge. It is incumbent upon the Respondent No.6 and the Respondent No.4 to categorically narrow down the circumstances under which the charge squarely stands proved and in the absence of any such finding, reasoning much less any corroborative material or evidence on record to co-relate or fasten the guilt it is absolutely unfair on the part of the Respondent to state that there was circumstantial evidence when even the Respondent is silent on this aspect.

54. The Petitioner further states that the Respondent No.4 has perhaps not even perused the records properly and seems to be totally bereft of the facts of the matter as it is unfair and clearly prejudicial for the Respodnent No. 4 to submit that “there is no record to show that Shri. R. P. Srivastava had either protested to his seniors or any other officer of the Corporation regarding the circulation of e-mail under his name..................

55. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4 is through out the order passed by the Appellate authority harping about the recordings of the DA (the Disciplinary Authority) the Respondent No.6, making it absolutely obvious that the Respondent No.4 has just put a stamp on the order passed by the Disciplinary Authority the Respondent No.4 without application of mind and thus the appellate authority has completely abused the process of law by abusing the statutory duties cast upon them of coming to independent and objective conclusions as to the findings.  The Petitioner states the Respondent No.4 has just reproduced and referred to the order of the Respondent No.6 and in an absolutely slipshod manner dealt with the appeal which has been preferred by the Petitioner and this Court ought to view this seriously. 

56. The Petitioner states at the cost of repetition that the Respondent No.4 has not independently entered into any exercise of analysis or applied its mind independently to establish the charges vis-a-vis the challenges raised by the Petitioner in the appeal. 

57. Deal with the copy of the properties of the mail submitted aspect.

58. Deal with p-71 

The Respondent No.4 is trying to escape its responsibility of coming to an independent conclusion on the one hand and on the other it is not at all in a position to establish the truth of the charges levelled and yet without justification, analysis or material on record to point out the Respondent No.4 states “We concur with the findings of the Disciplinary Authority” The Petitioner with utmost respect would like to point out that the role and responsibility of the Appellate Authority is much beyond than merely concurring with the findings if any of the Disciplinary authority and thus here again the Respondent No.4 has committed a grave error and an lapse prejudicial to the Petitioner.. 

59. The Petitioner states and submit that during the proceedings held on 08.09.2008 no list of witness had been provided to the Petitioner and he was once again compelled to persuade the Enquiry Officer and further request  for the list of Documents to be provided which were : 

1. New Delhi HC Order Dated; 28.004.2008 in Suit No. CS(OS) No. 1475 o f2007, HPCL V/s HP-MSA & Ors. (Certified Copy of the order)

2.  Copy of the above mentioned suit.

3. List of parties (Full and complete title)

4. All the documents related to decision that post of CEO in Hindustan Colas JV could not be thrown open to or advertised amongst the officers of HPCL.

5. Any communication from HPCL Management of HP-MSA made 6 months back.

6. Minutes of interview conducted for post of CEO of Hindustan Colas.

7. Inspection of File related to appointment of Mr. Sanjay Grover.

8. Copies of letters or communications made by Management to Dy. Labour Commissioner Vide letter dated: 06.05.2008 and later in respect of the strike.

9. Inspection of File related to Reconciliation Proceedings made by Dy. Labour Commissioner. 

10. Inspection of Official Website of HPMSA. 

60. The Petitioner states that the entire approach and the attitude of the Enquiry officer was with a predetermined motive to defeat the Petitioner and find means to scuttle the Petitioner’s efforts to ensure that the Petitioner is unable to effectively defend himself, one such example is that the Enquiry Officer in the proceedings held on 13.8.2008 wherein he has gone to the extent of stating that the Petitioner’s Defence Counsel has given false information during the Enquiry proceedings on 11.8.2008 that too in the matter of request to refer to certain documents which is totally unfair and when an explanation was offered the Enquiry officer totally imposed himself being in the chair of authority and snubbed the Petitioner’s Defence Counsel and without any evidence further emphasised that “.... that proves....” which speaks of the bias that the Enquiry officer held against the Petitioner.

61. The Petitioner has to state that the entire action and the manner in which the Enquiry officer conducted the Enquiry was absolutely casual and cursory so much so that the Enquiry officer has even gone to the extent of recording during the Enquiry proceedings held on 11.08.2008 as: “........Mr. R. P. Srivastava has circulated the news item from  HP-MSA email ID to be inserted in newspapers and news channels for which prior permission has been obtained from C&MD as was required under the CDA Rules applicable to the Management ......”. This clearly establishes the casual approach adopted by the Presenting Officer and the Enquiry officer’s ignorance as if this were to be accepted the Article of charge – II itself fails. Hence it is established beyond doubt that the entire Enquiry was a sham and conducted in a slip shod manner.

62. The Petitioner states that in the Enquiry proceedings conducted on 11.08.2008 Presenting officer has yet again committed another lapse in as much as he has stated while referring to document No. P-9 the Presenting officer submitted: “Further news item was published in Times of India dated: 7.5.08 under the title, “HPCL STAFF STRIKE UNDER JV SALARIES” wherein the CO on behalf of the HP-MSA has quoted that the corporation was engaging in fiscal mismanagement and arbitrary functioning besides making other false allegations” the Petitioner submits that the Presenting officer has not substantiated this by either documentary or oral evidence. The Petitioner has in specific terms denied having made any such statement much less a statement before the press and if at all this allegation has to be held as true then it was incumbent upon the management to examine the witness to spell out the truth, in the absence of any material on record and the Petitioner’s categorical denial merely on a statement the allegation cannot be led to be believed. Further the Petitioner states that this allegation is not levelled against him as a management officer/staff of the corporation but in the Petitioner’s capacity as an office bearer of the Association wherein logically it is obvious that the Petitioner cannot be equated as an ordinary management staff to be applied with the rules pertaining to the management employees as the Petitioner’s actions are in furtherance of the aims and objects of the association and not as in individual officer. Thus merely reading an article reported as a news item and on a bare reading of the said article reported by someone to whom the Petitioner has denied in the Petitioner’s defence statement dated: 1.12.2008 that he  has interacted or provided any information and wherein the Petitioner has been wrongly quoted without the Petitioner’s consent and knowledge the management is trying to fasten the guilt upon the Petitioner arbitrarily without proving the allegation as per the rules and the law.

63. The Petitioner states that as late into the Enquiry as on 08.09.2008 when even after repeated requests for List of Witnesses and supply of documents the Petitioner was compelled to record and state which stands recorded in the Enquiry report to reproduce “Till now i.e. till 08.09.2008, PO has not presented the list of the witnesses and therefore I am submitting three letters addressed to Respondent No.6  and copy to your good self for your necessary action .........”. To this instead of taking proactive and direct action the Enquiry officer merely asked the Presenting Officer “Please give clarification on the queries made by CO. ..”. Thus it would be obvious that the Enquiry Officer himself was not in control of the situation and  it would be seen that the Enquiry officer instead of getting into the business of conducting the Enquiry by producing witnesses and trying to conclusively establish the charges was busy prolonging and procrastinating the Enquiry by unnecessary submission directed towards the Petitioner or busy taking on record documents without supplying copies of the same to the Petitioner and making no efforts at all to take a step in the direction of proving the documents being taken on record thus clearly exhibiting lack of his knowledge and being totally unaware of how to deal with the issue of proving a document in the Enquiry.

64. The Petitioner has even pointed out the rule namely Rule F(3) of the Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited Conduct, Discipline and Appeal Rules, 1976 (For the same of brevity hereinafter referred to as the said rules) vide the Petitioner’s communication dated: 08.09.2008 specifically pointing out that it is mandatory as per the rules to supply to the Petitioner copies of all the documents by which and a list of witnesses by whom the articles of charges are proposed to be sustained. The Petitioner had specifically pointed out that List of Witnesses was not provided to him and therefore he was completely in the dark as to the nature of evidence that would be relied upon by the management against him and thus had requested for the list of witnesses along with their statements to defend effectively. The Petitioner submits that the list of neither witness nor statements were provided and on this count alone the entire Enquiry stands vitiated. Be that as it may, the Petitioner had also raised objections and placed on record the Petitioner’s dissent vide communication dated: 16.07.2008. 

65. The Petitioner states and submit that the Enquiry officer has indulged in actions totally detrimental to him in as much as the memorandum issued to the Petitioner was with a list of limited documents and no list of witnesses were provided to which the Petitioner was perforce compelled to submit the Petitioner’s reply and thereafter during the course of the Enquiry the Enquiry officer kept on repeatedly refusing to supply the document to which the Petitioner had sought to be provided and which were produced by the Presenting Officer without supplying copies thereof to the Petitioner to effectively defend and place a proper reply.  The Respondent No.5 has completely ignored this point in its impugned order and failed to deal with it. 

66. The Petitioner states that the Enquiry officer time and again at the behest of the Presenting Officer kept on taking on record document after document without at any occasion giving the Petitioner an opportunity to prepare himself to reply to the said document or giving the Petitioner an opportunity to peruse the said document merely stating that the document shall be supplied and then remaining ignorant about the same and not supplying. 

67. The Petitioner thus states that on the count of the email being circulated not a single witness in support of the email to corroborate their source of origin have been produced. The IT&S Officer or the officer/technical expert concerned and responsible to manage the Server of the website of HPMSA who could throw some light into this aspect were never summoned nor examined nor were any interrogatories sought to come to the truth of the matter by either the Enquiry Officer or the Presenting Officer and all the Petitioner’s efforts in this direction were turned down and rejected thus the charge that is Article of Charge – I cannot be proved. The Enquiry officer has not examined a single witness in support of this charge and there is not even an iota of evidence either oral or documentary further there is no nexus or credibility to establish this charge. The finding has been arrived at  in the disciplinary proceedings  are not governed by fair play and the finding is based on no evidence.

68. The Petitioner had also urged that further list of documents to be referred would be given only after receipt and perusal of the aforementioned documents as the list could be ascertained only after inspection. The Enquiry Officer in the most arbitrary manner in disregard and flagrant violation of principles of natural justice observed that the Petitioner’s request of inspection of original documents with respect to employment of CEO in Hindustan Colas JV. Mr. Sanjay Grover is not relevant to the Enquiry and further stated that all other documents requested by the Petitioner which are directly connected with strike carried out allegedly on the Petitioner’s behest can be produced in course of time and rejected the Petitioner’s request to inspect HPMSA website. Thus even at this stage the Enquiry Officer did not make any efforts to ensure that documents which were heavily relied upon by the Enquiry Officer were not supplied to the Petitioner causing serious prejudice to him  and depriving the Petitioner to effectively defend himself as in the absence of material used against the Petitioner  a serious handicap has been caused to him.

69. The Petitioner state that it has been arbitrarily presumed that the Petitioner has drafted the article for the publication without proving the documents or producing a single witness to corroborate either from the press agency or any other.  The Petitioner states tht the Respondent No.4 has the audacity to state that  ....”we find that all the documents mentioned in the memorandum dated: 07.05.2008  and relied upon in the Enquiry have been provided to the CO and the CO was provided with adequate opportunity to question the same.  Further as mentioned in the earlier paragraphs the findings on the Article of charges are based on the evidence produced in the Enquiry”  The Petitioner most humbly and respectfully would like to point out that the Respondent No.4 has chosen not to give a single instance or an example as to the nature and the scope of the evidence that is pointing against the Petitioner in fact the Petitioner has categorically established not only the fact as regards: 

a.  That the documents sought by the Petitioner were never supplied to the petitioner.

b. The documents produced by the management were never proved

c. The witnesses sought to be examined by the Petitioner were never summoned and never produced.

Yet in the fact of this as to how the Respondent No.4 could be in a position to state as quoted above could only be a design to just punish the Respondent at any cost. Any way the Petitioner feels that the Respondent No.4 has perhaps evolved its own standards of appreciating evidence besides the legal requirements and established parameters.

70. As the news article would reveal the article that is being referred to is not a press release but an independent article reported by a reporter who has been categorically named as the author of the Article namely Mr. Piyush Pandey. Thus by no stretch of imagination can it be assumed that the Petitioner is in anyway responsible for the said article. Further it has been alleged in the proceedings dated: 08.09.2008,  “Further, denying categorically in his reply of the Memorandum regarding the email sent from his official email ID to Director-HR (Respondent No.5) reveals that the CO has given false or incorrect information...” the Petitioner is unable to understand as to how such a statement could be have been made without even affording the Petitioner an opportunity to properly reply. Thus no procedures were followed to maintain any standard of proof required to be established as true or false and only on assumptions and presumptions the Enquiry proceeded. The proceedings go on to record “.......The above evidence proves or establishes Article of Charge II.........” thus the Enquiry officer has allowed frivolous pieces of article unsubstantiated to be treated as material against the Petitioner which is with malafide intentions and not permissible at all. The Petitioner states that suspicion or presumption cannot take the place of proof.
71. The  Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4 is merely quoting what has been challenged by the Petitioner in his appeal but the Appellate Authority the Respondent No.4 has miserably failed to substantiate anything to the contrary or explained the untenability much less provided with any reasons on this count.  The Petitioner vehemently denies it as absolutely incorrect and mischievous on the part of the Respondent No.4 to put words in the mouth of the Petitioner to state that “Mr. R. P. Shrivastava (the Petitioner herein) has neither contested the contents of the above emails produced in the Enquiry nor offered any comments on the same”....  The Petitioner states that this perhaps established the fact that the Respondent No.4 has not perused the appeal of the Petitioner at all. 

72. The Petitioner has to state that in so far as the document P-71 is concerned which is a letter dated: 06.05.2008, first of all this letter is addressed to The President, Hindustan Petroleum Management Staff Association, with a clear note at the bottom categorically stating “Management of HPCL is requested to handover the copy of the said notice to the President, HP-MSA and request them to attend the conciliation proceedings today at 12.30 Hrs. In this office. Thus first of all a communication is not at all addressed to the Petitioner secondly the Petitioner has clearly stated that he was using blackberry 8100 handset and the said handset did not have the facility of opening attachments of any incoming email, and therefore the contention that the email was opened and read by the Petitioner (2.26 pm on 06.05.2008) is incorrect and a presumption if any the Petitioner was already in discussion with the Management and there was no opportunity to access any desktop computer and see the contents of the GroupWise email. In the Enquiry proceedings dated: 09.09.2008 the Petitioner categorically pointed out that Despite categorical requests from the Conciliation officer to handover the notice to the President, HP-MSA, the notice was not handed over rather it was sent on email as an attachment to the Petitioner which clearly established that the  Management of HPCL was fully aware of the fact that the Petitioner was along with the  president HP-MSA who were totally against the strike and in fact were trying their level best to reach an amicable solution. Further the Petitioner states that the falseness of the allegation is established when  confronted with the fact that it was mentioned by the Enquiry officer that the time of dispatch of Dy. CLC’s notice was 12.07 p.m. then how was it alleged that it was sent on email by the Chief Manager – IR at 11.30 a.m. to which there was no answer at all. Thus this entire exercise of going around in circles was a mere sham to project that some business was being conducted at the Enquiry.
73. The Petitoner states that the Respondent No.4 is perhaps  not aware of the fact that the Petitioner is not a workman as defined under the Industrial Disputes Act and thus the provisions of the Industrial Dispute’s Act do not apply to him but the determination of the Respondent No.4 to somehow nail the Petitioner cannot escape attention as the Respondent NO.4 even after being apprised of this aspect of the legal position in the appeal preferred by the Petitioner is still relying on the irrelevant position in desperation of nail the petitioner.
74. The Petitioner has to state that when he  pointed out to the Enquiry officer that the dates mentioned in the emails taken on record P-23 to P-31 are different from the dates mentioned in the documents P-3, P-4, P-5, P-6, P-8, P-12, P-14, and P-16. A reply came forth by the PO “I wish to bring to the notice of the EO that the emails, depending on the user set-ups, shall have different formats viz. dd/mm/yyyy or mm/dd/yyyy or any other format. Hence the contention of the CO that the mails are of different dates does not have any validity” This was in view of the complete ignorance of the fact that the emails were retrieved from different locations and from different computers and that this is the reason that the format of identical mails was different, the dates were different. The Petitioner has to thus state that the Enquiry Officer nor the Presenting Officer were aware of what material was before them they were only bothered about the contents whether they were identical or not. It never occurred to the Enquiry officer nor the Presenting officer that the duty cast upon them was to first establish that the source of origin of communications in question sent through the email and secondly  establish that the Petitioner was the author of the document and the creator of the document on the system in the inbox of the website. The Enquiry officer has miserably failed to establish this fact thus it can never be established nor has it been proved that the emails originated from any computer under the Petitioner’s control through the IP Address of the computer assigned to him nor the emails retrieved are from the sent mail of the mail box of the Petitioner’s system hence it is only on guess work that the Enquiry officer proceeded with the Enquiry. 

75. The Petitioner has to state that on 10.09.2008 during the Enquiry proceedings a request was made by the Petitioner stating that the Defence counsel had suddenly taken ill and therefore the Petitioner wished the proceedings to be adjourned to which was a caustic reply of the Enquiry officer as recorded in the said proceedings : “Bringing DC for your defence is your responsibility only and adjourning at the presentation stage of case, on such grounds that DC is sick, shall not be permitted”, this established the determined effort of the Enquiry officer to deprive the Petitioner of a proper opportunity to defend and somehow by any means fair or foul proceed against the Petitioner as in the same proceedings when the Petitioner stated “I am unable to understand what all documents are being presented and unable to defend himself in the absence of  the Petitioner’s DC” the Enquiry officer replied “At the end of the day PO will present copies of all these documents of your /DC’s perusal and defence, as per the established practice.....”. Thus the Enquiry suffered from serious lapses and irregularities prejudicial to the Petitioner’s interests resulting in utter denial of principles of natural justice.

76. The Petitioner has to state that finally during the Enquiry proceedings on 17.09.2008 the Management produced one witness Shri. H. Padmanabhan, Sr. Manager Training, Petroleum House who mainly deposed regarding the aspect of his being present on the site where the buses leave with the officers to reach them to the office from their home at HP Nagar (E). This witness has also failed to establish any fact by his evidence in fact this witness has categorically stated that ...” There is not an iota of evidence led by this witnesses wherein the witness has deposed that the Petitioner was in any manner responsible to prompt or incite the officers to go on strike. This witness has in fact by his deposition established a very important aspect namely that the Director-HR” himself was present and appealed to all the officers to resume the duties immediately. The witness has never stated that the Petitioner ever addressed the officers directly or was instrumental in inciting them or instigating them directly. This witness further is of no consequence as he is in no position to depose regarding the emails as he is only a recipient of the emails as stated by  him from the mailbox of public domain namely mail@hpmsa.org. Thus this witness could in no way establish who could have been the sender of the email received. Neither has the management brought on record through this witness of the fact as to on which computer he has received the emails and what is the IP address of the computer through which he has received the email. Further it is pertinent to note that during the examination of this witness and in the presence of the witness the PO verbally states: “...The bare perusal of these emails reveal that the CO and Shri. Ashok Singh have xxxxx the officers, including MW-1, for proceeding on an illegal strike ...” clearly putting it to the witness a clear suggestion and prejudicing him against the Petitioner thus establishing that the witness is not an independent witness who can be relied upon. The Petitioner states that in the cross-examination the witness has admitted that he has received the email from the public domain mail box mail@hpmsa.org. When a direct question was put to the witness in respect of addressing the group gathered “Can you recall exactly what I (the Petitioner) said?” the reply was “You were supplementing Shri. Ashok Singh, when the witness was asked “Please be more specific.” The witness replied “I cannot recollect exactly” The witness thus did not at all inspire confidence and was obviously absolutely unsure of what he was speaking. The witness though in the cross examination in clear terms states that “Physically the officers were not being prevented from boarding the bus”. It is very important to note here that the witness when asked “Since Director-HR made an appeal to resume the work, why you did not concede to his appeal?” he replied “For the day it was quite late and the decision of resuming work would have made sense from the following day onwards only” thereby establishing that one that the Respondent No.4 was present on the site as a principal participant in the episode and  that the officers were not on strike they did not attend the office because it was rather late. On the point of email when the Petitioner asked the witness “Do you say above mails were sent by me?” the categoric answer of the witness was “I presume they were sent by you since those have been received from mail@hpmsa.org bearing your name at the bottom” clearly admitting that he had no knowledge of who had sent the mail to him. In the Petitioner’s efforts to establish the truth and to arrive at a cogent finding the Petitioner wished to ask the witness regarding the appointment of Mr. Sanjay Grover and it was only when the Petitioner stated “Since MW-1 is a member of the Association and also the officer of the Core Group of the Management, i.e. HR and was on strike on 6.5.2008 and also did not respond to the appeal of Director – HR, it is important and critical to know his state of mind and to know his state of mind the question pertaining to Hincol may kindly be permitted in the equity, fairness and natural justice in the Enquiry thus witness replied :  “ I believe the issue raised by HPMSA was valid. However, I had doubts whether HPMSA had fully understood the legal position of appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover by the Hincol Board. Therefore I was doubting whether all the details about the legality of the appointment of Shri. Sanjay Grover had been fully understood by HPMSA before giving the strike call. As regards appeal of Director-HR the Respondent No.4 & 9 to resume duty, it was quiet late in the day and I did not go to work”, thus it stood established that the officers were never on strike but the issue raised was a valid issue and thus the officers were more enthusiastic to go on strike but the Petitioner along with Mr. Ashok Singh were infact trying to persuade the officers for amicable solution which has been twisted by the management to allege that the Petitioner was prompting and inciting the officers Secondly the Respondent No.4 was officially a participant. No credence can be lent to the testimony of this witness as he has not been able to establish that the Petitioner was in any way responsible to incite or prompt the officers to go on strike, he has not been able to establish that the mail received was the mail sent by the Petitioner nor anything noteworthy has been brought on record through this witness by the management as material to establish any of the charges levelled against the Petitioner.
77. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4 has committed a grave error and by its finding it stands established that the Respondent No.4 has proceeded on the basis of presumption rather than the legal principles as enunciated by the statutes or the law as the Respondent No.4 in defiance of the principles of law and the rules has stated: “The witness has also confirmed that he has received various emails on the subject flash strike from hpmsa Email ID with Shri R. P. Shrivastava and Shri. Ashok Singh’s name at the bottom and presumed that they have been sent by both these officers”.  The  Petitioner states that on this Presumption of the witness the Respondent No.4 records and conclude : ...”Therefore, we find that the CO’s contentions that he had not xxxxxx the officers or there was no strike or he was persuading the officers to resume duty are baseless and only afterthought”.  The Petitioner is at pains to point out that the Respondent NO.4 has proceeded totally on presumption and thus the order deserves to be quashed and set aside on this count alone. 
78. The Petitioner states that thereafter the management produced one more witness in the Enquiry proceedings dated: 03.11.2008. The witness produced was a constable named Mr. Salunke Vinayak Bhaskar and the intent and purpose of this witness was totally lost. The testimony of this witness in no way could bring on record any cogent material to establish any of the charges levelled against the Petitioner. 

79. The Petitioner states that during the proceedings held on 08.09.2008 a specific request was made by the Petitioner vide 3 letters all   dated: 08.09.2008 whereby supply of relevant documents crucial and pertinent to the Enquiry were sought further the Petitioner stated that it was a mandatory requirement provided under CDA rules that the list of witnesses had to be provided to the delinquent officer before the inquiry was initiated and witnesses are examined in support of the allegations made against and thus along with the Charge sheet the Petitioner was entitled to have the list of witness and their statements by whom the articles of charges were proposed to be sustained against the Petitioner. The Petitioner also sought inspection of original documents relied upon by the management however the Petitioner states that till the conclusion of the Enquiry and the issuance of the impugned order he has never been accorded an opportunity to inspect the original documents in order to effectively defend himself. Hereto annexed and marked are the three letters dated: 08.09.2008 and are annexed as EXHIBIT “I”

80. The Petitioner state that on receipt of the said letter, the Enquiry Officer surprisingly and shockingly instead of asking the Presenting Officer (PO) to make his submission on the point raised by the Petitioner, he observed that he should get reply from the Respondent No.6
 on the objection raised by me.  Accordingly he recorded in the meeting  held on 08.09.2008 i.e. “As earlier clarified, I shall get the reply from Respondent No.6 on the Petitioner’s observations. However, there is no rule which says that the Enquiry should be stopped or adjourned on account of your above observations. Therefore, I am now requesting PO to present the case and put on record the documents”. Thereafter the PO made his submission which has been recorded as “PO to EO : the Petitioner wishes to refer clause no. F-12 of CDA Rules, wherein it is clearly mentioned that, “Before the close of the prosecution case, the Inquiring Authority may, in its discretion allow the presenting officer to produce evidence not included in the charge sheet or may itself call for new evidence or recall or re-examine any witness. In such case, the officer shall be given opportunity to inspect the documentary evidence before it is taken on record or to cross examine a witness, who has been so summoned”. Accordingly it is submitted to EO that the observations made by CO has been clarified and there is no necessity to refer the same to the Director Marketing. This is in utter disregard of the principles of Natural Justice.

81. The Petitioner state that it is mandatory requirement provided under CDA rules that the list of witnesses has to be provided to the delinquent officer before the inquiry is initiated and witnesses are examined in support of the allegations made against the Petitioner.  However, in the instant case even on demand, Enquiry officer refused to forward a list of witnesses and further more tried to justify his action in not furnishing the list of witnesses to the Petitioner, this clearly violates and vitiates the initiation of the inquiry itself and on this count itself the inquiry ought to be quashed and set aside as illegal.

82. The Petitioner states that the whole intention of the Management of the corporation is to malign the Petitioner’s image for his Hindustan Petroleum – Management Staff Association (HP-MSA) activities and also the Petitioner’s integrity and honesty. The conduct of the  Enquiry Officer to conclude the inquiry in the earliest possible time without giving opportunity to the Petitioner at all  and submit report against him, so much so that while the Petitioner  requested the EO to adjourn the inquiry on 13.08.2008 (When DC had reported sick) yet the EO proceeded with the inquiry. 

83. Again on 10.09.2008 when the Petitioner’s Defence Counsel was sick, EO forcefully proceeded to continue with the inquiry with a view to have the Enquiry completed in undue haste. This is evident from the fact that the proceedings dated: 10.09.2008 record: “Since I am being forced to continue with the Enquiry without my (the Petitioner) DC, I register my strong protest”. Thus the Enquiry officer was bent upon denying the Petitioner proper opportunity to defend the Petitioner and thus serious prejudice has been caused to the Petitioner and principles of natural justice have been violated.

84.  The Petitioner states and submit that in an absolutely casual and frivolous manner the Enquiry was conducted as a farce just to some how make a show of carrying out some procedure with the sole intention of causing grave prejudice to the Petitioner and to carry out a personal vendetta as the sequence of the events would demonstrate, the Enquiry was concluded on 07.11.2008.

85.  In the proceedings on 07.11.2008
 the Petitioner made a fervent appeal for producing the most relevant witnesses the Director-HR, GM-Hr (Marketing) and GM HRD to be produced as witnesses to establish the truth of the matter. Further the Petitioner again requested for the TCP/IP address of origin of the mails and further requested the Shri. Sunil Atolia who was the administrator of the Website HPMSA be also contacted for any clarification and further reiterated that the Petitioner had all along tried to reach an understanding between the agitating officers and the management so as to reach an amicable solution and avert the strike and in any case there was no strike. The Enquiry concluded on 07.11.2008. Copy of the entire Enquiry proceedings are collectively hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT”J”to this appeal.
86. The Presenting Officer submitted his brief on 31.12.2008 to which the Petitioner submitted his reply on 07.02.2009. Copy of Brief submitted by the presenting office dated: 31.12.2008 and the Petitioner’s reply dated: 07.02.2009 are hereto annexed as EXHIBIT “K
” & EXHIBIT “L” respectively.

87. The Petitioner states that he received the Enquiry Report dated: 23rd February, 2009 on 25th February 2009. The Petitioner was in the process of preparing his Written Submissions to the Enquiry Report and as per the rules a period of 15 (Fifteen) days are provided for filing and submitting the written submission to the Enquiry report thus since the Petitioner was in receipt of the Enquiry Report on 25th February, 2009 time available to be for filing of written submission for the Petitioner was till 12th of March, 2009. The Petitioner has to however state that in between since he was keeping indifferent health the Petitioner had even sought permission vide the Petitioner’s SMS dated: 26th February 2009 from ED (O&D) Shri. Y. K. Gawali with a copy marked to GM HR Mktg., Director HR, Director Marketing (The Respondent No.6  in this case) to proceed to Pune for Medical Treatment from 28th February, 2009 to 10th March 2009, The petitioenr received a reply to his SMS dated: 26.02.2009 on 28th February, 2008 from ED (O & D) granting him permission. Thus the Respondent No.6 was well aware of the position of the Petitioner’s not being in a fit position to address any serious issue yet in the face of it when on 12th March 2009 the Petitioner sought the indulgence of the Respondent No.6 to seek a further period of 7 (Seven) days to file his written statement the Respondent No.6  arbitrarily chose to deny and deprive the Petitioner’s his rightful opportunity to defend. Copy of Enquiry Report dated: 25.02.2009 is hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT “M”. 
88. The Petitioner states that under the rules he is provided a statutory period of 15 (Fifteen) days to submit The Petitioner’s written submission to the Enquiry report. The Petitioner  received a copy of the Enquiry report on the 25th of February, 2009 thus the 15th day the last day for submission of Enquiry Report was on the 12th of March, 2009 and because of genuine and valid reasons The Petitioner  made a written request for grant of seven days time to finalise and submit his  written submission yet even before the 15th day could get over and  before the expiry of the statutory period as provided to under the rules the Respondent No.6  passed the order. It is obvious from the length of the order that the same could never have been passed in a day thus it is obvious that the Respondent No.6  had kept the order ready and merely signed the said order on the 12th of March, 2009 adding a paragraph regarding rejection of The Petitioner’s permission for grant of time and dispatched the order. The Respondent No.6  has thus violated the rules and caused the Petitioner grave injustice and passed the impugned order behind The Petitioner’s back in absolute and utter violation of principles of natural justice and thus the impugned order deserves to be quashed and set aside on this count alone. Copy of letter seeking permission for seven days time to file and submit The Petitioner’s written submission is hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT ”N”. 
89. The Petitioner states that the casual approach of the Respondent No.4 is writ large on the face of the record as the impugned order records that the request of the Petitioner for extension of seven 7 days was not supported by any documentary evidence such as Medical Certificate. The extent of prejudice that the Respondent harbour can be evident from the fact that the Respondent No.6 has never in its order of dismissal held that the refusal was justified as no medical certificate was annexed along with the request for extension but the Appellate Authority the Respondent No.4 to justify the action of the Respondent No.6’s order is substituting a reason on its own and justifying rather that viewing the matter objectively which is prejudicial to the Petitioner. 

90. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4 immediately after the issue of refusal of extention of time to allow the Petitioner to submit his written statement to the Enquiry Report immediately jumps to the issue of oral hearing without dealing with the issue of the violation of the statutory rule of providing the Petitioner with 15 days time to file his written reply to the Enquiry report and the Respondent No.6 passing the order on the report of the Enquiry Officer even before the expiry of 15 days. The entire circle of events and circumstances as narrated establishes a bias against the Petitioner. 
91. Thus serious prejudice has been caused with malafides intention as in the absence of written statement and behind The Petitioner’s back without according him a proper opportunity and no opportunity of an oral hearing the Respondent No. 6  has proceeded to pass the impugned order behind the Petitioner’s back in utter disregard of the principles of natural justice.

92. The Petitioner submits that before dealing with the impugned order he shall first deliberate over the illegalities, infirmities and the lapses committed in the Enquiry report submitted and point out and demonstrate as to how the Enquiry report is not only biased, capricious but is bereft of any logic, reason and based on concocted versions, presumptions and untenable theories and is absolutely baseless with no application of mind and is not based on any evidence but is a result of conjectures and surmises. 
93. The Respondent No.6 has not taken into account of the fact that the Enquiry Officer has committed a very serious error which in the eyes of the law is fatal to the Enquiry. Enquiry against the Petitioner has been initiated independently and a separate Enquiry had been instituted against one Mr. Ashok Singh as well, however the Petitioner states that both the enquiries are independent of each other and the Enquiry of the Petitioner and that of Mr. Ashok Singh are totally independent of each other and thus there is no common Enquiry which was being conducted except for the Enquiry officer being common to both the independent Enquiries. The Enquiry officer in his Enquiry report has in categorical terms for the first time has arbitrarily stated that “Since I have been entrusted with Enquiry into the charges levelled against Shri. Ashok Singh & Shri. R. P. Srivastava (002916) (the Petitioner herein), I would like to mention here that Shri. Ashok Singh has played the role of defence council for Shri. R. P. Srivastava(the Petitioner herein)  and Shri. R. P. Srivastava (the Petitioner herein) has played the role of defence counsel for Shri. Ashok Singh. Therefore I shall use some of the information extracted by them from the witnesses in either case.” Thus the Enquiry officer extracted information from the witnesses in either cases and used such information extracted from the Enquiry of Mr. Ashok Singh against the Petitioner and probably extracted information from the Petitioner’s Enquiry and used the same against Mr. Ashok Singh. This is prejudicial to the Petitioner in as much as the Petitioner has lost his valuable chance of rebuttal. As the Petitioner was not a participant in the Enquiry of Mr. Ashok Singh he had no occasion to cross examine the witness whose testimony has been used against the Petitioner. The only justification accorded in the impugned order by the Respondent No.4 is that “We find that the deposition of witness is limited to the events  on 6.5.2008 at HPNE colony and NOT related to establishing the article of charges. This goes to show that there was absolutely no seriousness in the conduct of the Enquiry and punishment was a foregone conclusion and only as a sham Enquiry was conducted as the Respondent had already decided to punish the Petitioner.

94. Thus this is clear violation of principles of natural justice and thus on this count alone the entire Enquiry vitiates and the order of the Respondent No.6  is therefore without application of mind on this aspect and issue and thus the impugned order passed by the Respondent No.6  needs to be quashed and set aside as void in law. 
95. The Petitioner states that the Enquiry officer has relied upon the testimony of MW-1 Shri. J Mahesh  a Senior Officer HR conducted in the Enquiry of Mr. Ashok Singh’s  case. This is against all tenets and principles of law as this witness was not produced and examined in the Enquiry conducted against the Petitioner and thus the Petitioner has no knowledge nor even an inclination of what this witness has deposed and further the Petitioner has never been given an opportunity to cross examine this witness in the face of this illegality the entire Enquiry thus gets vitiated and the Respondent No.6  has not taken any cognizance of this fact and in utter ignorance in a mechanical fashion without any application of mind passed the impugned order which on this count alone deserves to be quashed and set aside.
96. The Petitioner states that now at this stage it is not possible for the Respondent to state that : “We proceed on the basis that, that part of the evidence and findings are to be disregarded.”  The Respondent No.4 is sitting is appeal and is not expected to re-appreciate evidence hence this again established the determined effort of the Respondent no.4 to somehow book the Petitioner and punish him even at the cost ignoring blatant and obvious injustice staring into the eyes of the Respondent No.4. The Petitioner therefore states the Respondent have not been partial in the matter at all.

97. The Petitioner says and submits that the Enquiry officer choose to record according to his whim as the Enquiry officer continually records the documents produced quoting his name (The Petitioner’s name) at the bottom of the messages which was in the capacity of coordinator OSOA and not as HPCL official, completely losing sight of the fact that the appearance of the name at the bottom of an email message is not conclusive proof of the fact that the person whose name appears at the bottom of the email is the sender of the email.
98. The Petitioner says and submits that the Enquiry report lacks substance much less any substance to fasten the guilt upon the Petitioner in any manner as none of the charges levelled stand proved as no evidence has been brought on record to establish any of the charges. The Enquiry officer has wrongly recorded that the Petitioner has at any point of time or in particular as regards contents of P37 and P38 never stated that the contents of these documents are false and malicious. In fact what the Petitioner stated in the Petitioner’s reply to PO’s summation report dated: 07.02.2009 was in respect of item 2(b) of PO’s summation report and not in respect of the contents of the P38. Thus the Enquiry officer is himself totally unaware of the proceedings and is confused and not in a position to come out clearly as regards the transactions of the Enquiry.
99. The Petitioner state that he has at no point of time earlier or in his appeal ever accepted the contents of P-37 and P-38 and what is recorded in the appeal is categoric namely that the Enquiry officer has wrongly recorded that the Petitioner has never stated the contents of the documents as false and malicious. 
100. The Petitioner has to most respectfully state that the Enquiry officer records: “I give hereunder the important observations on the various documents presented during the Enquiry proceedings........” clearly establishing that on mere observation and not on cogent evidence the Enquiry officer has proceeded thus absolutely unsubstantiated material has been relied upon by the Enquiry officer which vitiates the Enquiry and thus the Enquiry needs to be quashed and set aside. 

101. The Enquiry officer has at every given instance lost no chance to use extraneous material against the Petitioner.  This reeks of malafides intentions and establishes the malafides. The Enquiry officer has recorded in respect of the Petitioner’s addressing the gathering of officers: “This has been confirmed and established during the examination/cross –examination of MW-1 and also by Shri. Ashok Singh during the Enquiry”. I have to state here that first of all Mr. Ashok Singh was never examined/cross-examined in the Petitioner’s Enquiry proceedings. Thus it is obvious that the Enquiry officer is referring to some proceedings conducted perhaps in the Enquiry of Mr. Ashok Singh which renders the Enquiry proceedings void.
102. The Petitioner states that the Enquiry officer has recorded that “they were controlling by sending instigating mail one after the other.....” This is absolutely malicious and incorrect as the Enquiry as at no point of time been able to establish this and it has not been proved that the Petitioner was the sender of any email. 

103. The Petitioner states that it stands established and proved that the Director- HR the Respondent No.5 ,8  and the GM-HR were present on the spot and came to address the Officers gathered in large numbers at the Petitioner’s and President of the Association’s behest to pacify the officers. Thus it was obvious that the Respondent No.5  and the GM HR were the key witnesses to depose in the Enquiry and reveal the truth. Inspite of this factum of knowledge available with the Enquiry officer and ignoring and rejecting the Petitioner’s fervent and insistent appeal to the Enquiry officer to summon the Director- HR  the Respondent No.4 and the GM-HR the Enquiry officer purposely chose not to summon the Director HR the Respondent No.4  and the GM-HR and thus the Enquiry has failed as a result of the lapse committed at the hands of the Enquiry officer and the Enquiry stands vitiated. Secondly now the Respondent No.4 having sat in appeal has ensured that the Petitioner is somehow nailed at his hands.
104. The Enquiry officer is merely conjuring and speculating. The Petitioner denies that it stands proved. The Petitioner states for the record that Flash strike was for 5th of May 2008 and the same was deferred thereafter there was no strike at all and on the next day the gathering of the officers took place in consequence of their enthusiasm and resentment against the appointment of Mr. Sanjay Grover and it has been established beyond doubt that no one participated nor there was a call for any strike and thus these overwhelming facts would prevail over  the contents of some letter skirtly referring to some success of some strike. The Enquiry officer has to come to terms with the facts and not be carried away with conjectures and surmises as has been demonstrated by him.

105. The Petitioner says and submits that the Enquiry officer records that “they subsequently arranged a meeting with Director- HR the Respondent NO.4 in HP Nagar (E) auditorium, only to show they were playing a dual role i.e.  for the management and for the officers”. The Petitioner argues if this were so then in the first place he would never have made an appeal and insisted to summon the Director – HR the Respondent No.4  and in any case it was open for the management to produce the Director HR but the Enquiry Officer purposely chose to desist from summoning the Director HR  the Respondent No4 as the management and the Enquiry officer knew that they would be exposed. 
106. The Petitioner states that it is the imagination of the Enquiry officer that: “CO (That is the Petitioner) has accepted sending these mails, in the capacity of HPMSDA office bearer”. The Petitioner at the cost of repetition states that he never accepted sending any mail. The Enquiry officer is putting words in the Petitioner’s mouth with malafide intentions.

107. The Petitioner says and submits that the Enquiry officer’s conclusions in respect of Article of Charge – I are absolutely baseless and unsubstantiated and the Enquiry officer has concluded only on conjectures and surmises as there is no cogent evidence available to fasten the guilt as regards the Article of Charge- I is concerned. Except and by repeating some excerpts from either the Enquiry report or reproducing some material, the Enquiry officer has not applied his mind and come to the conclusion and thus the Article of Charge – I miserably fails and is demolished and not proved at all.  The Respondent No.7 has thus failed to justify.
108. The Petitioner has to state that the Enquiry officer while recording ; “the officer members of HP-MSA under the subject, “Press Release” thereby enclosing text of press release forwarded to various press agencies.....” has completely lost sight of the fact that “officer members” do not just mean a bunch of officers it means the Central Executive Committee (CEC) as is contemplated under the constitution, rules and bylaws of the association.  In case of a press release the decision is of the CEC and not an individual member of the Association and therefore the concept of collective responsibility. This aspect of the matter has been totally ignored by the Enquiry Officer. 

109. The Petitioner has to state that the Enquiry officer has committed a blatant error in as much as the Enquiry officer has recorded that : “CO while releasing these Press Releases has totally forgotten all his responsibilities as Sr. Manager Operations, bound by applicable CDA Rules”.  Thus the Enquiry officer has assumed without evidence that the Petitioner has released the press release and secondly the Enquiry officer has lost sight of the fact that the Petitioner could not be treated as an Officer of the Corporation as he was playing the role of an office bearer of the Association. The Enquiry officer has thus got completely confused and lost track of the matter. Thus Article – II of the charge also does not stand proved. The impugned order is absolutely silent on this count.
110. The Petitioner says and submits that the Enquiry officer by his conduct and language made it amply clear that he holds a grudge against the Petitioner in as much as even without leading any evidence and on issues which are not substantiated the Enquiry officer has gone on record to state: “he has conveyed totally false information”. the Petitioner have to respectfully submit that before the Enquiry officer could embark upon to conclude anything of such nature it was incumbent upon him to first establish that the information was false. Having not carried out any such exercise and merely by his own surmise the Enquiry officer has concluded the information to be false which reeks of prejudice and malafides against the Petitioner.
111. The Petitioner has to further state that the Enquiry officer has enlarged the scope of the Enquiry in as much as the Enquiry officer has himself improved upon the imputation of charges and brought within the purview questions not relevant to the issue. The Enquiry officer has arbitrarily and in excess of the authority he enjoyed has gone on record to state that : “ ....flash strike on 6.5.2008 causing great loss to the company, bringing disrepute and tarnishing the image of the corporation in the eyes of the  public.........”. Be that as it may the Enquiry officer has miserably failed to establish this at all. Be that as it may it has never been reflected nor projected by any documentary evidence of any estimates of loss suffered by the Respondent corporation , wherein such loss has been quantified and published in any  news paper , annual report or any other public document like as is done in other corporation like ONGC etc., fact of the matter is that there was no loss as there was no stoppage of work at any location and no such report is on record or ever produced.
112. Thus on this count also the Enquiry stands vitiated and the impugned order deserves to be quashed. The same illegality has been committed by the Respondent No.4, while passing the impugned order.
113. The Petitioner has to say and submit that the Respondent No.6 has raised an issue of there being no record to show that the Petitioner had either protested to the Petitioner’s seniors or any other officer of the corporation regarding the circulation of the emails. The Petitioner has to bring to light the abject ignorance of the Respondent No.6  in as much as that on 5.5.2008 itself the strike was deferred and within less than 24 hours the Petitioner was served with the Charge Sheet hence where was the occasion, opportunity or the time for the Petitioner to protest. Further there is no question of the Petitioner’s silence being proof of the Petitioner’s complicity as the Petitioner was silenced by the Charge sheet itself. The management in its design to nail the Petitioner had kept the charge sheet ready and immediately served the same to the Petitioner leaving him to answer the charge sheet rather than deal with the situation. Inspite of this the Respondent No.4 has repeated this in the impugned order instead of dealing with this truth. The Respondent No.6 has recorded that “The above documentary evidence adduced in the Enquiry is proof of involvement of Shri. R. P. Srivastava (the Petitioner  herein) in the fact of such incontrovertible evidence.....” I have to state that even the Respondent No.6 lost sight of the meaning of adducing evidence in as much as none of the document has been proved and the Respondent No.6 has further failed to elaborate on which document and in the face of the Petitioner’s having objected to the document how can any evidence become incontrovertible thus the Respondent No. 6  has gravely erred and the order deserves to be quashed and set aside. 
114. The Respondent No.6 is continually stating “documentary evidence” whereas the documents cannot be treated as evidence as the same have not been proved at any point of time been proved. 

115. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.6 has drawn indication and reasoned that the indication is in consequence of the absence of a single defence witness. The Petitioner has to state that the Respondent No.6  is completely ignorant of the fact that the Petitioner was not permitted to summon any witness and even on the Petitioner’s fervent appeal during the Enquiry proceedings conducted on 07.11.2008 witnesses relevant to the issue particularly Respondent No.4 were never produced denying the Petitioner any opportunity to lead evidence and defend himself.

116. The Respondent No.6 has conveniently presumed that the emails have originated from the Petitioner’s email ID when the same has not been proved which is prejudicial to the Petitioner and untenable in law.  
117. The Petitioner states and submits that the Respondent No. 4 & 6  have not applied their mind independently and merely stating that they have applied his mind independently is not sufficient. It is obvious from a plain reading of the order as it reveals that  the Disciplinary Authority the Respondent No. 6 and the Respondent No.4  has Firstly:    not dealt with the Enquiry officers Report Dated: 17.02.2009, The Respondent No.6  has relied upon the Presenting Officer’s summary of arguments  and based on these summary of arguments the Respondent No.6 has given his own findings thus the Respondent No.6  has himself sat in judgment and discarded the findings of the Enquiry Officer which is a serious error in law. Even while concluding the Respondent No. 6  has recorded “From the proceedings of the Enquiry....” Thus the Respondent No.6 has completely discarded the Enquiry Report as the Respondent No.6 has based its entire reasoning on the submission of the Presenting Officer and the proceedings of the Enquiry and thus the Respondent No.6 has himself drawn conclusions based on material not dealt by him and given a complete go by to the Enquiry report. This deprecates the role of the Enquiry officer and is against the rules and the law and thus the order passed by the Respondent No.6 is not sustainable in law.  Secondly the Respondent No.6  has not acted independently as averred in as much as a direct effort has been made by the Respondent No.6 which can be perceived from a plain reading that the Respondent No.6  has not at all dealt with the Enquiry Officer’s report/findings and has personally gone into details of summary of arguments of the presenting officer to somehow nail the charge against the Petitioner by design giving a complete go by to the rules and the law in the matter.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
118. The Respondent No.6 has lost sight of the fact that when intent is alleged then one has to go to the root of the matter and to prove evidence is required which is lacking in this case.
119. The Petitioner states that  he was not allowed to participate in the Enquiry at all as the  entire Enquiry was one sided and the Petitioner could never avail of any opportunity at any point of time to be granted opportunity to have the witnesses examined or seek inspection or copies of the documents relied upon by the Respondent.  The Enquiry was conducted totally against and in utter violation of principles of natural justice and even the order passed by the Respondent No.4 suffers as the Respondent No.5 who was a party to the entire proceedings and who was in fact summoned by the Petitioner as a witness has himself sat in appeal over a cause the Respondent No.5 was himself involved which is a serious and a fatal breach of the principle of Natural Justice. 

120. The Petitioner states that on the one hand the Respondent No.4 on the one hand imposes punishment of “Dismissal of Service” vide its impugned order and by its subsequent order reduces the punishment under the garb of reevaluation when there is no such provision under the rules this  reveals the vacillating stand of the Respondent establishing that the entire exercise was to somehow to nail the Petitioner and thus the Petitioner has approached this Hon’ble court of seeking justice as this was the one element which was never the guiding principle for the Respondent at any stage of the matter and it is this element “justice” that has eluded the Petitioner since the moment he took up the crusade to expose those indulging in corruption involving Hundreds of  crores of rupees  especially those at the helm of affairs,  proof of this is the complaint of the Petitioner which today stands converted into an FIR registered by the Central Bureau of Investigation. 

121. 
The unfortunate outcome of the Petitioner’s integrity, boldness and valour is that instead of being appreciated to be one among many to have `the courage to stand up and be upright the Petitioner’s own survival has been jeopardised by removing him from service and denying him protection as per the policy of Respondent No.1 to declare such persons as Whistleblower. Since the Petitioner himself has withdrawn the writ petiton seeking such protection he does not wish to raise this as an issue but the fact remains that the Petitioner is a victim who has been nailed at the hands of those in power and this Hon’ble court’s jurisdiction is the only recourse the Petitioner has belief to be granted justice which has been denied to him for his act which otherwise is considered to be of worth of gallantry.
122. The Petitioner states and submits that he is unable to understand the approach of the Enquiry officer as he records under the head of I GIVE THE PETITONER’S OBSERVATION ON CO’S REPLY TO PO’S SUMMATION REPORT the Enquiry officer has observed as: “ At the outset I wish to put on record that CO has by and large denied all the charges .....” This is an attempt to mislead as I have vehemently and in toto denied all the charges therefore such expression of “by and large” giving an impression that the Petitioner’s denial is not absolute is misleading and thus the Enquiry Officer by his statement is giving rise to speculation.
123. The Petitioner states the  impugned of order dated: 21st September, 2009 is passed without the power and the authority the Respondents enjoy in as much as the Respondents have passed the said impugned of order against the rules as there is no provision under the rules empowering the Respondent’s to re evaluate. 

124. The Petitioner states that the Respondent have in fact sat in review of the order passed by them without according an opportunity to the Petitioner by giving the Petitioner either an oral hearing or with any opportunity to place his say in the matter. 

125. The Petitioner is at pains to point out that the Respondent have not even cared to disclose to the Petitioner as to who is responsible and what was the contribution of the appellate authority and even on an Enquiry vide the Petitioner’s letter dated; 1th October, 2009 the Respondent have chosen to ignore and have not bothered to give any information clearly indicating that the Respondent’s enjoy an attitude of “the king can do no wrong” which is absolutely arbitrary and against the law. Copy of letter dated: 1th October, 2009 is hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT “P”. 

126. The Petitioner states that  in view of what is stated the impugned orders passed by the Respondent deserve to be quashed and set aside.

GROUNDS
127. The Petitioner is in receipt of the order passed behind The Petitioner’s back by the Respondent No.6  dated: 12th March, 2009 and at the very outset the Petitioner wishes to state and submit that apart from being absolutely shocked and surprised at the absolutely arbitrary, callous and predetermined action undertaken at the hands of the Respondent No. 4 & 6.   The Petitioner states the the Respondent No.4 has in a callous manner ignored that even before the completion of the mandatory period of 15 days provided under the rules and in as much as in flagrant disregard and complete violation of principles of natural justice without according the Petitioner an opportunity to place the Petitioner’s written submission to the Enquiry report submitted, turning down to the Petitioner’s written request for a further period of 7 (seven) days, for genuine reasons known to the Respondent No.6 , to submit the Petitioner’s written submission to the Enquiry report submitted and behind the Petitioner’s back without even according the Petitioner a proper opportunity the Respondent No.6  has passed an order imposing a major penalty of Dismissal from Service. The entire action on the part of the Respondent No.6  demonstrates a clear motive to victimise the Petitioner and the said action of the Respondent No.6  not only renders the order void and illegal, the said order is bad in law, void ab-initio  and under no circumstance can be upheld in the eyes of law. The Petitioner therefore assail the said impugned order dated: 15.07.2009 and pray that the order dated: 15.07.2009 and 12.03.2009 passed by the Respondent No.6 be set aside, quashed and set aside as void, illegal and nonest in law. .   
128. The Petitioner says and submits that the Enquiry Officer as well as the Respondent No.6 both have failed to take cognizance of the fact that as an Office bearer of the Association the Petitioner enjoyed protection as the association is registered under the Indian Trade Unions Act 1926 which accords the Petitioner immunity for all actions undertaken in the Petitioner’s capacity of an office bearer of the Association. 

129. Keeping this distinction in mind if the Respondent had proceeded and if the Respondent had applied its mind the decision under challenge that is the impugned order would never have been passed. Therefore the impugned order deserves to be quashed and set aside. 

130. Dealing with the Important observations on the various documents presented during the Enquiry Proceedings and on the examination and Cross examination of the witnesses the Petitioner has to state that the Enquiry officer by his approach has clearly demonstrated his lack of knowledge as regards the principles and the rules involved in the conduct of an inquiry in as much as mere observations of documents presented during the Enquiry proceedings are not sufficient to prove the charge. The document relied upon has to be not only furnished but a fair chance to the Petitioner to peruse the said document has also to be given and then to place absolute reliance on the contents of the said document witness have to be examined with an opportunity to the Petitioner to cross examine the witness in order to test the veracity of the witness and then and then only the said document could become part and parcel of the Enquiry proceedings otherwise it was merely a piece of paper of no evidentiary value.

131. The Respondent have completely lost sight of the fact that while dealing with the emails it was obligatory on the Respondent’s part to establish the source of origin and thus the only relevant document in case of an email would have been mail retrieved from the sent mail of the mail box of the source of origin of the mail. The Respondent  have relied merely on mails produced without even bothering whether such mails are retrieved from the mail box of some unknown recipient or otherwise. Thus having not investigated on this issue the mails have lost all evidentiary value and cannot at all be relied upon and further the Petitioner have to state that the Petitioner’s request to go to the root of the matter by either investigating the HPMSA site or request for the TCP/IP address of the source of origin of the said email was also turned down keeping the issue wide open for speculation and thus the entire issue becomes ambiguous.

132. The Respondent have gone on recording arbitrary and one sided reasoning without even according an opportunity and has not recorded any contention of the Petitioner raised and his thus behind the Petitioner’s back decided on his own without adducing any evidence on the documents or the issues thus the entire action is in flagrant violation of the principles of natural justice and thus needs to be quashed and set aside.

133. The Petitioner states that the strike was deferred thereafter the Petitioner himself persuaded the officers to desist from going on strike and even sought the indulgence of the Respondent  No. 5 to intervene and pacify the officers yet inspite of these overwhelming evidence on record the Enquiry Officer has tried to tilt the balance only to victimise the Petitioner and put him to harm.

134. The Petitioner states that the Enquiry officer has proceeded in a manner totally prejudicial to the Petitioner in even the most irrelevant aspect regarding adjournment’s and protests. 

135. The Petitioner objected to the observation made in the Conclusion as regards Article of Charge –I Para 3, of the Enquiry officer and took exception as the Enquiry officer was getting drawn by extraneous factors and was thus influenced against the Petitioner by extraneous considerations and had thus not confined to the facts of the case at hand and allowing himself to be drawn into and influenced as he stated : “The Letter conveying HPMSA concern about HPCL by CO and Shri. Ashok Singh is possibly in efforts to establish themselves as Whistle-blowers
 and intend to divert the attention of the authorities from the action they anticipated against them in some cases”. This has absolutely no bearing on the case and the Enquiry officer has presumed and thus the entire Enquiry is on a presumption conveniently assumed by the Enquiry officer as there was no case even contemplated against the Petitioner. This vitiates the entire Enquiry and thus the impugned order could not have been passed and has been passed without considering this aspect and is thus passed absolutely without any application of mind and deserves to be quashed and set aside on this count alone. 

136. The Respondent No.6 has contradicted himself as he records that the Petitioner having sent yet another threatening mail from hpmsa.org on 8.5.2008 at 5.50 p.m. to all officers of the company thanking them and yet again influence is being drawn by the fact of some charge memorandum issued which is not relevant to this inquiry and in respect of which no witness has been examined nor any opportunity to reply and rebut has been provided to the Petitioner. In the presence of such gross infirmities the entire Enquiry stands vitiated thus the order impugned itself is nonest and void ab initio and deserves to be quashed and set aside. 

137. The Enquiry officer without any evidence much less any cogent evidence on record merely on conjectures and his own surmises comes to the conclusion that the Petitioner has committed misconduct which is not only arbitrary, capricious and prejudicial but full of malafides without any basis and in violation of the law and rules in the matter. 

138. The Respondent  have erroneously dealt with the emails and have not even bothered to find out the truth as regards the basis and the nature of the email being a communication through the electronic means and as such because of absolute lack of knowledge in this regard has failed miserably. 

139. Thus the Petitioner states that all the conclusions drawn by the Respondent  are erroneous baseless and with malafides intentions and not based on any cogent evidence and the Respondent have allowed a fishing exercise and none of the charges stand proved.
140. In so far as the letter addressed to the Prime Minister dated: May, 2008 is concerned the Petitioner states that Clause g) of the Constitution and Rules and Byelaws categorically state : “  To seek redress of grievances of the members through representation before appropriate authorities.” Thus the Petitioner was only furthering the aims and objects as laid down under the Constitution and Bylaw of the Association and therefore no question in this regards can be ever raised by the management. The Petitioner further states   that the said letter has been taken cognizance of by the Government of India and in fact a decision to collect comments/observations on the points raised has also been initiated since the action is a genuine effort to seek redressal and remedies on behalf of the Oil Sector Officers Association (OSOA) and anyway this is not concerned with HP-MSA but the Enquiry officer has got drawn into the same unnecessarily. 

141. The Petitioner states  that he strongly objected to the Enquiry officer’s usage of the words such as “Threatening”, “Malicious” and “damaging” as the Enquiry officer has not even tried to establish that the email in question have been sent by the Petitioner or otherwise. Thus by no stretch of imagination can the Enquiry Officer say that the Article of Charge – I can be proved against the Petitioner.

142. The conclusions drawn by the Enquiry officer are totally erroneous and baseless and lack any foundation much less the same are not based on any evidence much less any cogent evidence.

143. The Petitioner submits that even as regards the last charge the Enquiry officer has dealt with miserably and failed to establish and has not been able to collect even an iota of evidence in this respect either of the fact of the DY. CLC(C) Mumbai matter as the notice was never served on the Petitioner and neither has any evidence much less a document brought on record to even remotely suggest that the notice was served upon the Petitioner. As already mentioned during the course the Petitioner was already with the Management and the Respondent No.5 was also right in front of the Petitioner thus this loses its relevance. In so far as the High Court judgment is concerned the Enquiry Officer has lost track of the fact that the judgment is specific to the parties appearing and the Petitioner denies having filed any vakalatnama on behalf of the association HP-MSA. The Enquiry officer has not produced any document or evidence to establish that he was responsible for filing the vakalatnama in the matter in question before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court. The Judgment was not given nor was the Petitioner at all aware of the said judgment but the Enquiry officer has conveniently presumed against the Petitioner.  Thus this charge has also miserably failed.
144. The Petitioner says and submit that this is a classic case of non application of mind as a bare perusal of the order of the Respondent would reveal that the Respondent has mechanically without any application of mind and in defiance of logic with the sole view to punish the Petitioner proceeded to pass the order.

145. The Petitioner submits that the Respondent except for interpolating in between with highlighted text to just pass a comment in first person to project to the reader that the Respondent is in favour of the Respondent No.6 and the Enquiry Officer  the Respondent No.4has at no instance or at any point of time on any evidence tried to evaluate or throw light or even remotely make an attempt to analyse and seek to establish the charge or to weigh the material in a fair and balanced manner to show that the charges were not vague and proper efforts were made to establish the charge.

146. The Petitioner says and submits that the Respondent No.6  has completely lost track of the fact that in an Enquiry merely the contents of the document are not enough and are not the only consideration or the material on record that establish the truth it is the actual facts and the circumstances that have occurred that establish the happening or not happening of an event and on the basis of such either happening or not happening that the charge stands either proved or disproved. If it were so simple that only the contents of a document could establish then the entire gamut of Enquiry would not have been necessary. In the Petitioner’s case the Enquiry officer has failed to establish that there was a strike, no authority has held that there was a strike the circumstances, events and the facts surrounding the events have established beyond doubt that there was no strike thus a mere content of a document which had not even undergone the scrutiny of examination in chief and / or cross examination cannot be the basis to establish a charge and thus the mere statement or the recording of the Respondent No.6  that some fact is mentioned in some letter purported to the addressed by the Petitioner would not establish the charge as is sought to be done here. 

147. The Petitioner says and submits that he is entitled to an explanation as to what the Respondent No.6  means when it states that “The aforesaid circumstances and evidences leads me to conclude .........” when no evidence was conducted, no witness was produced no document stood established as true and correct without the production of the author of any  the said document.  The fact of the matter is that as regards the circumstances no evidence was led, as regards the evidences it would be wrong on the part of the Respondent to consider pieces of paper with some text on it as evidence.

148. The Petitioner further states and submit that the Respondent No.6  has been completely misguided by the fact that intention cannot be assumed and concluded merely as a matter of course unless there is corroborating evidence to establish, in the Petitioner’s case in the absence of any such evidence it is not open for the Respondent No.6  to state any such thing. 

149. The Petitioner says and submits that if there was any intention on the part of the Enquiry officer to lift the cloak the Enquiry officer would have produced the Respondent No.4 Director – HR and the GM- HR in the witness box as was requested by the Petitioner repeatedly. It is in fact because the Enquiry Officer with a determined and of a pre-planned view and  wanted to victimise the Petitioner that the Enquiry officer and the Presenting officer themselves shrouded the entire Enquiry with a cloak and instead of lifting the cloak by letting the responsible officers who were on the scene and in the know and who had recorded in the minutes itself that no disciplinary action would be taken against the Petitioner be produced were purposely prevented from participating and were purposely never produced and the Petitioner was denied his valuable right to cross examine and effectively defend himself the Petitioner shall rely on the minutes which has the handwriting of the GM –HR himself.

150. The Petitioner says and submits that the Respondent No.6  is maliciously trying to confuse by stating about some relation between the emails originating from HPMSA and email ID and official email Id of the Petitioner. The Petitioner wishes to know what the Respondent No.6  means by the HPMSA email ID and the Petitioner’s official email ID, it is an attempt of the Respondent No.6  to shoot in the dark and confuse. 

151. The Petitioner has to state and submit as to of what diabolical pattern the Respondent No.6  is referring to after an unblemished record of past more than 27 years for the Respondent No.6 to state in such loose terms is unfair especially without any substantive evidence on record and the Petitioner object to this vehemently.

152. The Petitioner and submits that the finding of the Respondent No.6  in respect of Article of Charge – I is bereft of any logic and is totally unsubstantiated and untenable as the entire finding is based only on conjectures and surmises and mere speculation. No evidence was led, when the Petitioner requested for witness to be produced none of the witnesses were produced, document relied upon have been used against the Petitioner behind his back without providing the documents to the Petitioner and even information has been exchanged against the Petitioner’s behind his back thus the charge miserably fails and is disproved and stands demolished and the Petitioner cannot be held guilty of any violation of any of the clause under the Conduct rules as it has not been proved that the Petitioner has committed any misconduct.

153. Thus in view of the above the Petitioner has to state that the finding arrived at by the Respondent No.6  in respect of the Article of Charge – II is baseless and untenable and unsubstantiated and thus is useless and worthless and cannot be relied upon. The Petitioner fail’s to understand what the Respondent No.6  means when it states “weighing of evidence ...”  the Petitioner needs to know what is the evidence which the Respondent No.6  claims  was before it to consider. As the Petitioner has to emphatically state that no witnesses in this regard were examined, no document stood proved as no evidence was ever adduced in this regards to prove the document and the documents had no evidentiary value the Petitioner has not admitted a single document then what is the evidence the Respondent is stating to have weighed.

154. The Petitioner has to state and submit that his  actions if are viewed by the Respondent as actions undertaken in the Petitioner’s capacity as an employee then there is a serious miscarriage of justice as the entire action as contemplated is as regards the Petitioner’s action in his capacity of being the office bearer of the Association. Nothing stands established, the Respondent is on his one drawing conclusions to suit himself to somehow punish the Petitioner. The Respondent therefore cannot hold the Petitioner guilty of violating any of the clauses of the conduct rules as the Petitioner has not committed any misconduct and nothing has been proved.

155. The Petitioner has to state and submit that neither the Enquiry Officer nor the Respondent No.6  have the powers to first of hold and declare a strike to be illegal. This is within the realm of some other authority with statutory powers established under the law. Therefore no charge of illegal strike can be levelled against the Petitioner nor has it been levelled against the Petitioner but the Respondent seems to be trying to improve the charge sheet itself by trying to surmise “illegal strike”.
156. The Petitioner states that the Respondent No.4 for the first time is raising the issue and creating a new charge “ of the flash strike resulting in disruption in essential supplies of petroleum products to the public and huge loss to the corporation”. The Respondent No.4 against is introducing the charge at this final stage of “Consequences of his (the Petitioners) action have also tarnished the image and reputation of the corporation in the eyes of the public.  The Petitioner thus states that the Rerspondent No.4 instead of sitting in appeal has created its own reasons and invented its own findings and created new charges to nail the Petitioner. 

157. The Petitioner is shocked to note that the Respondent No.4 has gone to the extent of holding the Petitioner responsible and charged for acts subsequent to the initiation of disciplinary action against the Petitioner in as much as the Respondent No.4 has categorically held that “ It is also noted that even after initiation of disciplinary action against him, (the Petitioner) Shri. R. P. Srivastava (the Petitioner) promptd officers for another flash strike on 13.05.2009..........” thus the Respondent No.4 has held the Petitioner guilty for a charge not even framed and Enquiry conducted against him.

158. The Petitioner yet again wishes to point out that the Petitioner the Respondent No.4 and Respondent No.6 have gone to the furthest extent of not only holding the Petitioner guilty but also punishing the Petitioner for a charge which was not framed nor was the Petitioner ever tried for the said charge in as much as the Respondent No.4 concludes :  “ The disciplinary Authority has also held that Shri. R. P. Srivastava (the Petitioner herein) shall not be eligible for any salary or allowances for the period of his suspension other than the subsistence allowance already paid for him.  The Petitioner states that the Respondent have punished the Petitioner for a misconduct not even alleged against him much less any such misconduct  dealt with in accordance with law and the Respondent No.4 and 6 have held the Petitioner guilty and awarded punishment for such a misconduct which is unheard of. 
159. The Petitioner has to state and submit that the Respondent  has lost track and has not appreciated the facts regarding the order of the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi and thus has been mislead. The judgment is a judgment is persona. The Petitioner was not aware of the judgment and thus no such charge could ever be framed against the Petitioner. In any case of the matter the charge stands demolished as nothing could be proved.
160. The Petitioner says and submits that the issue regarding deregistration of the Association is baseless and is a non -issues as the Association’s registration has been restored by Hon’ble Industrial court’s  order dt. 4.4.09, and even Registrar has restored it vide their letter dt 31.8.09. 
161. The Petitioner says and submits that the conclusions drawn by the Respondent are baseless, capricious and malicious and only with a view to victimise the Petitioner and somehow nail the Petitioner without any evidence much less any cogent evidence against the Petitioner. Thus the entire Enquiry stands vitiated and the charges have not been proved and stand demolished and thus the Petitioner cannot be said to have committed any misconduct and therefore the Petitioner is not guilty of having committed any act which can be said to be punishable under the Conduct rules and therefore the Petitioner ought to have been  exonerated of all the chargers levelled against him and the order of the dismissal ought have to be quashed and set aside and declared as illegal and void.

162. The Petitioner states and submits that in any case of the matter the punishment awarded is shocking disproportionate to the gravity of the charge that has been levelled against the Petitioner the undersigned have to further state that the quantum of punishment awarded is far to gross in relation to the charge that has been levelled against the Petitioner and on this count also the order has to be quashed and set aside.
163. The Petitioner states and submits that the Respondent have in gross violation of principles of natural justice indulged in an act which has resulted in total miscarriage of justice in as much as the Respondent No.5 has acted as an appellate authority who is himself involved in the matter and the Petitioner has assigned a very imminent and particular role which apart from having been articulated by the Petitioner has also stood established by the Respondent themselves and the same person who has played a pivotal role in the entire episode revolving round the Petitioner which has led to the framing of the charge against the petitioner has sat in judgment over and above the acts alleged to have been performed by the Petitioner to constitute the alleged misconduct. As the axiom goes “no person should be a judge in his own cause”.  This is a classic example wherein the person who has been totally involved and fully immersed in the role and actions involved and revolving the Petitioner and whom the Petitioner had by name and designation sought to be produced as a witness before the inquiry has audaciously sat in judgment over the issues involving the Petitioner which is against the basic core tenets of principles of natural justice and thus the impugned order suffers from an infirmity which cannot be remedied and hence the impugned order is rendered void and nonest in law.

164. The Petitioner states that there has been wide scale discrimination which has been practiced and the Petitioner has been made a virtual victim of discrimination only with a view to isolate and somehow target the Petitioner to seek a personal vendetta by damaging, spoiling and truncating the career of the Petitioner.

165. The Petitioner states and submits that the impugned order passed by the Respondent is with an ulterior motive and establishes this fact as the Respondent as an afterthought passed the impugned order of reevaluation knowing fully well and realising that the charges levelled against the petitioiner are all trumped up and can never ever be sustained in the eyes of law. 

166. In the conspectus of the facts and circumstances the Petitioner has to most respectfully state that the entire Enquiry conducted is a sham and the entire gamut of the Enquiry has not been followed viz:

a) Witness examined and testimony of the  witness who had deposed in a separate Enquiry not related at all to the petitoner’s Enquiry was relied upon by the Enquiry officer the Appellate Authroity has denounced the testimony of the witnesses as NOT RELIED upon by either the Disciplinary Authority or the Appellate authority and thus the Petitioner is at pains to comprehend the relevance of the Enquiry.

b) Be that as it may the petitioner states that the Respondent have illegally and in abject ignorance of the rules and the law in the matter relied upon the evidence and ratified the act of the Enquiry officer of the Enquiry Officer having used evidence of witness conducted in some other Enquiry and having read it as evidence against the Petitioner. The said witness has never been produced as a witness in the inquiry conducted against the Petitioner and the Petitioner was never given an opportunity to cross examine the said witness thus the entire Enquiry stands vitiated.

c) The documents produced were not supplied to the Petitioner and were not proved by producing the author of the document as a witness without  according an opportunity to the Petitioner to effectively defend himself.
d) Not only the Enquiry officer but even at the appellate stage the Respondent No.4 sitting in appeal has succeeded in creating a New charge which was never an imputation of charge in the Charge sheet namely “loss of business credibility of the Corporation which was assiduously built up over years with customers, and other important stake holders including the Government of India etc., and …” thus the Enquiry stands vitiated.

e) The Respondent No.7 who has been arrayed in his personal capacity sat in judgment over an issue in which he was directly and substantially involved in his capacity as Respondent No.5 namely the Director – HR which vitiates the impugned order. 

f) Key Witnesses were not produced even upon insistence of the Petitioner to be produced to be examined who could have led to the truth and the veil could be lifted to arrive at the truth of the matter. 

g) The main witness the Respondent No.5, G.M. HR(Mktg.) of the Corporation, the person in charge of the website, and many other witness key to the issues were never produced who could have testified so that the truth could be revealed.

h) Emails produced were of no relevance in the absence of the TCP / IP addresses and thus the emails on record are of no consequence as all the emails are copies of recipients of the email. Not a single email has been produced from the mail box of the sent mail.

i) The Enquiry officer has flouted established norms and procedures in the conduct of the Enquiry and thus valuable opportunity has been denied to the Petitioner thereby the Enquiry officer and the Respondent  have gravely violated and flouted principles of natural justice.

j) The Petitioner’s objection to the appointment of the Enquiry Officer which the Petitioner expressed on account the Petitioner’s apprehension of getting justice at his hands was expressed in writing and which was rejected which in turn has been proved to be right. Hence justice has not been done.

k) The Respondent have failed to draw the distinction between the role of the office bearer and that the acts of the Petitioner were acts done in good faith and for and on behalf of the association and that of a role of an employee.
l) The Enquiry officer as well as the Respondent No.6  have failed to consider that none of the imputations as contained in the Memorandum of the Article of Charges are as per the misconduct enumerated in the Conduct rules. 

m) Extraneous material has been used against the Petitioner without affording him an opportunity to rebut causing serious prejudice to the Petitioner in his defence. 

n) The Petitioner’s unblemished impeccable service record has been overlooked and a slip shod inquiry has been conducted as a mere farce with a pre-planned, predetermined motive with a design to victimise the Petitioner to settle personal scores.

o) It has been held by the Apex court that strike in any way in a democracy is the only way to vent the feelings and grievances and thus is not unconstitutional.

p) The documents stand vitiated as no opportunity was ever offered for cross examination nor the author of the document was ever produced to establish the veracity and authenticity of the document to prove any of the documents.

q) The entire gamut of the Enquiry is bizarre and no procedure has been followed with no meaningful hearing. 

r) No opportunity has been provided for inspection of documents at any time.

s) No oral hearing has been granted to the Petitioner at any stage and all orders have been passed behind the Petitioner’s back. The entire proceedings disclose that no efforts have been made to ensure fair dispensation of justice. 

t) The entire facts as quoted, construed and considered by the Enquiry officer and the Respondent No.6  is disputed and not admitted at all. 

167. The Petitioner states that substantial cause of action has arisen within the jurisdiction of the Hon’ble Court. The Petitioner is in employment of the Respondent and is being victimised and is assailing the order of dismissal passed by the Respondent who are within the jurisdiction of this Hon’ble Court. That being so, this Hon’ble court can therefore, entertains and try this Petition. 

168. The impugned orders are in violation and in breach of article 14, 16, 19(1)(c) and 21 of  the Constitution of India  and as such the same are liable to be quashed and set aside by this Hon’ble Court in exercise of its writ jurisdiction under Article 226 of the Constitution of India.
169. The Petitioners submit that the Petitioners have not challenged the impugned order impugned orders dated: 21.09.2009 re-evaluating order of dismissal of appellate authority, order dated: 15.07.2009 of dismissal by appellate authority, order dated: 12.03.2009 of dismissal of disciplinary authority , Enquiry officer’s report and finding dated: 17.02.2009 and eviction order passed by Respondent N0.8, dated: 21.07.2009 
 anytime before in this Hon’ble Court or any other court, including Hon’ble Supreme Court of India. However the Petitioner had filed a Writ Petition before this Hon’ble Court bearing WP NO. 2254/2008, on 16.9.08, which was heard and disposed of by this Hon’ble High Court on 1.10.08 , according the Petitioner liberty to approach this court again , in case an adverse order is passed on . Copy of Writ Petitioner along with Copy of order passed by this Hon’ble Court in Writ Petition No. 2254 of 2008 is hereto annexed and marked as EXHIBIT ‘’ and “” respectively,. The Petitioners submit that there is no other alternate remedy but to challenge impugned order by filing this petition under Article 226/ 227 of the Constitution of India.  Considering the date of the impugned order and the date on which the same was served on the Petitioners, the Petitioners are approaching this Hon’ble court as early as possible and in any event without any delay or latches on the part of the Petitioners.


PRAYERS:

170. The Petitioners in the circumstances most humbly pray that: 

171. The petitioners in the circumstances most humbly pray that: 

A. That this Hon’ble court be pleased to issue a writ of certiorari or a writ in the nature of certiorari or any other appropriate writ, order, direction and or relief under Article 226 of the Constitution of India calling for the records from the respondent No.7, 6 and 4 in respect of the Disciplinary Action taken against the Petitioner and after going through the legality, validity and proprietary thereof quash and set aside the impugned orders impugned orders dated: 21.09.2009, order dated: 15.07.2009, order dated: 12.03.2009, Enquiry officer’s report and finding dated: 17.02.2009 and eviction order passed by Respondents N0.8, dated: 21.07.2009 which are at Exhibit ‘A’,  ‘B’, ‘C’, ‘D’ AND ‘E’, respectively.
B. That this Hon’ble Court be pleased to issue a writ of Mandamus or a writ in the nature of Mandamus or any other appropriate writ, order, direction and/or relief under Article 226 of the Constitution of India directing the respondents to reinstate the petitioner in his original post with continuity in service and with full back wages and consequential benefits 

C. Pending hearing and final disposal of the above writ petition this Hon’ble court be pleased to stay the effect and implementation of the Order dated: 21.09.2009 and 12.03.2009 which are at Exhibit “A” & “C” hereto.

D. That pending the hearing and final disposal of the above writ petition this Hon’ble court be pleased to direct the respondents to reinstate the petitioner with continuity of service and full back wages and consequential benefits. 

E. Ad-interim relief in terms of pray clause (b) (c) and (d) above.

F. That the cost of this petitioner be awarded.

G. Such other and further relief as this Hon’ble court may deem fit and proper be granted.

And for which act of kindness and justice the Petitioners as in duty bound ever pray.

Advocate for the Petitioner  
       Petitioner 

Advocate for the Petitioner  
       

PETITIONER 
Petitioner drawn and drafted by Mr. Y. R. SINGH Advocate and settled by Mr. A. V. Bukhari, Advocate. 

V E R I F I C A T I O N


I, R.P.Srivastava the Petitioner above named  do hereby state on solemn affirmation that what is stated in paragraphs 1 to 115 is true to my own knowledge and belief and paragraphs 116 to 165 are stated on information and I believe the same to be true and I have suppressed no material fact.

Solemnly affirmed at Mumbai 
)

This 18th day of January 2010
)






Deponent

Before me

Advocate for the Petitioner             
PETITIONER 

� Mention this in the body of the petition


� Change this according to the designation mentioned in the order


� CBI COMPLAINT HENCE THE CHARGES


� Put the latin phrase


� PETITIONER’S BIO DATE


� Give reference of demand of summoning the Respondent no.5 in the Enquiry proceedings and narrate it to establish violation of principle of natural justice..


� Shft this para independently.


� VAGUENESS OF CHARGE EXPLAINED


� CHALLENGE TO THE ENQUIRY BEGINS


� Kindly check the status of circumstantial evidence from the Enquiry proceedings.


� We will have to deal with this aspect.


� Dea; with the properties aspect of the email 


� Check whether the Respondent No. is correct or not


� Check whether this is 7.11.2008 of 5.11.2008


� CONSIDER WHETHER TO RETAIN THIS OR DELETE


� GROUNDS


� Reference of whistleblower in the Enquiry


� Insert date of the impugned order


� PRAYERS








point 33 Enquiry in this case was abruptly discontinued on 18.2.09, while the Petitioner repeatedly demanded the approval note of Marker Purchase by the corporation , the same could not be produced probably taken away by CBI


point 71   explained in point no. 65


point no. 89 is blank


I had filed a WP NO. 2254 , on 16.9.08, heard by this hon’ble High Court on 25.9.08,1.10.08 , wherein Petitioner was accorded a liberty to approach this vcourt again , in case an adverse order is passed by disciplinary authority is passed , all grounds till 15.9.08, with documents covered in WP available with you in the soft copy . This whole case is a vendetta against me for filing CBI complaint . whether mentioning CNN IBN Report of 21.9.09, can be quoted in the case itself. Marker was abruptly stopped on 31.12.08


Mention about PIL  No. 60, in which hon’ble high court ordered  CBI enquiry on 23.10.08, dt of PE 29.4.09 no.xxx


marker chargesheet enquiry the next dt. Was fixed on 10.4.09, Since HPCL Management was caught , they purposely dismissed on 12.3.09, to escape further proceeding in the enquiry,over4 and above I was with CVC on 6.6.08, for the date I WAS ALLEGEDLY DISPLAYED THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE REPORT


Hrassment by NMnagement , eviction from office on 15.10.08, stoppage of conveyance for official work, removal of assistance, illegal wage cut for 3 days in oct 2008


There was no strike , agitation by some officers , quote RTI reply in the writ 


GM IR ‘S LETTER THAT NO STRIKE NOTICE WAS SERVED P-52


Marker details were obtained by shri Y P Singh , recd by us on 5.5.08 s

















PONT 71 ,Can we quote Shri YP SINGH’s small note w.r.t to 15 days period , I had sent you on mail also


Should we make Enquiry officer a party , 		Is it o.k to have dir. HR in both the capacities 


Mention of whistle blower is correct , except the we are not challenging their order





Enquiry closure on 7.11.08 is correct





Ashok had asked for IT &S officer to be called as witness , I had demanded on 5&7.11.08 to call GM HRD & Dir. HR Tobe called as witness


Mention some of the atrocities on me post filing CBI complaint apart from victimization in this case , our CBI complaint has been vindicated 





HPMSA registration has been restored by court order dt. 4.4.09, and Registrar has restored it vide their letter dt 31.8.09.


Where is the estimate of loss suffered by the corporation , whether it is published in any news paper , annual report or any other public document like ONGC , fact is there was no loss no stoppage of work at any location , if yes where is the report





Please edit add points spell,check and send me final draft                  THANKS   RPS























 





